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(Nikko AM Offshore Funds —DoubleLine Total Return Fund)

(Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited)

KY1-1104
309GT
(P.0. Box 309GT, Ugland House, South Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands)

03 6775 1629
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2017 28
2017 28
DoubleLine Capital LP
)
2003 26
)
) 2021
2021 480,000 5,308
110.58 480,000 110.58
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,058
)
2003 26
2009 27
)
2021
EC2V 5DE 480,000 100.00
40
Nikko AM Global Holdings (40 Basinghall Street, London EC2V 5DE,
Limited United Kingdom)
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53,232,232.96 96.13
2,100,331.29 3.79
55,332,564.25 99.92
45,238.18 0.08
55,377,802.43
100.00
6,123,677,393
2021
FHR 4326 BZ 3% 2044
3 3,718,587.84| 98.83| 3,674,903.23|106.90| 3,975,276.75| 7.18
04/15/44 15
FNR 2014-29 BZ 3% 2044
3 2,479,058.56 | 99.45| 2,465,338.37|107.01| 2,652,753.30| 4.79
05/25/44 25
UMBS P#CA4508 2.5% 2034
2.5 2,190,687.23]100.97 | 2,211,992.92]105.46| 2,310,332.75| 4.17
11/01/34 11
UMBS P#BE7188 4% 2047
4 1,548,773.92|104.68 | 1,621,303.34|109.26| 1,692,160.97 3.06
03/01/747
VISIO 2019-2 M1 V/R 2054
3.26 1,575,000.00 | 100.00 | 1,574,935.69|103.64| 1,632,352.05| 2.95
11/25/25 11 25
UMBS P#BL5315 2.44% 2032
2.44 1,500,000.00 | 100.47| 1,507,116.97 | 106.93| 1,604,021.07 2.90
01/01/32
FNR 2019-74 KT 2.5% 2049
2.5 1,500,000.00| 96.39| 1,445,803.22|103.16| 1,547,409.90| 2.79
12/25/49 12 25
UMBS P#CA4507 2.5% 2034
2.5 1,366,391.07| 101.04| 1,380,541.64 | 105.93| 1,447,364.51 2.61
11/01/34 11
UMBS P#AS6503 3.5% 2046
3.5 1,262,900.15]102.58 | 1,295,446.03|107.93| 1,363,102.87 2.46
01/01/46
US TREAS BDS 1.625% 2050
10 1.625 1,500,000.00| 95.96| 1,439,425.48| 89.86| 1,347,890.63| 2.43
11/15/50 11 15
FGLMC P#Q44452 3% 2046
11 3 1,180,803.51| 99.50| 1,174,863.39|105.12| 1,241,281.15| 2.24
11/01/46 11
OOMLT 2007-6 1A1 V/R 2037
12 0.2815 1,309,841.82| 86.02| 1,126,789.25| 92.56| 1,212,374.92 2.19
07/25/37 25
US TREAS NTS 1.625% 2031
13 1.625 1,100,000.00 | 100.16| 1,101,779.17|101.66| 1,118,218.75| 2.02
05/15/31 15
MABS 2007-HE1 A3 V/R 2037
14 0.3015 1,137,152.28 | 95.73| 1,088,548.74| 97.16| 1,104,894.23| 2.00
05/25/37 25
US TREAS NTS 0.875% 2026
15 0.875 1,100,000.00| 99.93| 1,099,184.02| 100.00| 1,100,000.00 1.99
6/30/26 30
UMBS P#RB5118 2% 2041
16 2 1,000,000.00| 101.82| 1,018,208.08 | 101.78| 1,017,775.11 1.84
07/01/741
US TREAS NTS 1.25% 2028
17 1.25 1,000,000.00 | 100.23 | 1,002,303.83|100.25| 1,002,500.00 1.81
06/30/28 30
UMBS P#RB5085 2% 2040
18 2 932,204.87 | 103.18 961,829.71]101.83 949,219.71 1.71
11/01/40 11
FNR 2018-33 A 3% 2048
19 3 904,038.03| 97.21 878,820.58 | 104.08 940,901.18 1.70
05/25/48 25
FGLMC P#Q42197 3.5% 2046
20 3.5 846,442.06 | 102.78 870,011.57 | 107.49 909,828.96 1.64
08/01/46
UMBS P#7T71827 3% 2047
21 3 693,033.12 ] 101.25 701,665.90 | 105.20 729,096.47 1.32
07/01/47
WMABS 2006-HE3 1 V/R 2036
22 0.2465 757,841.70| 93.60 709,305.83| 94.84 718,728.96 1.30
08/25/36 25
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CWHL 2006-0A5 2A V/R 2046

23 0.4915 743,784.99| 87.26 648,996.16 | 87.02 647,257.32 1.17
04/25/36 25
LBMLT 2006-9 2A2 V/R 2036

24 0.2015 1,513,468.68 | 49.93 755,646.68 | 42.43 642,102.10 1.16
10/25/36 10 25
PRPM 2021-2 A2 V/R 2026

25 3.77 600,000.00 | 100.00 599,995.89| 99.96 599,738.40 1.08
03/25/24 25
FHR 4223 SB V/R 2043

26 5.3198 561,774.01| 90.68 509,399.03 | 105.02 589,995.68 1.07
07/15/43 15
JMIKE 2019-1A 4.433% 2050

27 4.433 550,000.00 | 106.81 587,454.82 | 107.12 589,176.50 1.06
02/15/27 15
UMBS P#MA2806 3% 2046

28 3 556,285.48 | 100.70 560,185.42 | 105.79 588,509.51 1.06
11/01/46 11
CWALT 2005-4 1A 5.5% 2035

29 5.5 683,399.82| 90.50 618,472.42| 85.88 586,878.89 1.06
04/25/35 25
RASC 2007-EMX1 A V/R 2037

30 0.2916 592,298.12| 91.04 539,218.01| 93.87 555,972.54 1.00
01/25/37 25
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2020 2021
2018 28 8,686,382.00 960,540,122 9.87 1,001
2019 28 2,762,565.00 305,484,438 9.87 1,001
2020 29 2,527,093.00 279,445,944 10.40 1,150
2021 28 3,912,075.00 432,597,254 10.06 1,112
2020 3,086,464.02 341,301,191 10.24 1,132
3,379,063.00 373,656,787 10.22 1,130
3,385,718.76 374,392,780 10.24 1,132
10 3,362,726.61 371,850,309 10.16 1,123
11 3,958,864.83 437,771,273 10.19 1,127
12 3,957,143.92 437,580,975 10.18 1,126
2021 3,961,086.30 438,016,923 10.19 1,127
3,912,075.00 432,597,254 10.06 1,112
3,876,785.93 428,694,988 9.96 1,101
3,899,775.48 431,237,173 10.02 1,108
3,725,035.17 411,914,389 10.02 1,108
3,731,705.31 412,651,973 10.04 1,110
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2018 28 30,965,492.00 3,424,164,105 9.93 1,098
2019 28 23,351,368.00 2,582,194,273 10.05 1,111
2020 29 39,075,715.00 4,320,992,565 10.73 1,187
2021 28 19,700,876.00 2,178,522,868 10.50 1,161
2020 37,855,241.06 4,186,032,556 10.60 1,172
29,760,658.00 3,290,933,562 10.60 1,172

29,919,115.42 3,308,455,783 10.58 1,170

10 29,635,568.24 3,277,101,136 10.53 1,164

11 29,402,785.78 3,251,360,052 10.57 1,169

12 19,723,702.07 2,181,046,975 10.59 1,171

2021 20,094,955.81 2,222,100,213 10.61 1,173
19,700,876.00 2,178,522,868 10.50 1,161

19,274,929.55 2,131,421,710 10.36 1,146

18,105,410.81 2,002,096,327 10.44 1,154

17,914,591.48 1,980,995,526 10.46 1,157

17,422,451.31 1,926,574,666 10.50 1,161
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2018 28 1,319,826,597 9,747
2019 28 938,086,516 9,560
2020 29 740,002,439 9,878
2021 28 468,996,501 9,499
2020 533,768,433 9,673
529,850,136 9,654

512,678,071 9,671

10 509,091,234 9,603

11 481,770,585 9,627

12 474,544,408 9,613

2021 474,905,791 9,620
468,996,501 9,499

464,602,139 9,410

439,628,129 9,463

430,446,754 9,464

431,122,732 9,478
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2018 28 4,649,612,061 9,785
2019 28 4,111,604,311 9,658
2020 ”9 4,110,797,927 10,045
201 28 3,626,665,845 9,746
2020 3,846,678,881 9,865
3,801,069,440 9,860

3,797,973,008 9,851

10 3,776,517,707 9,795

11 3,790,080, 264 9,833

12 3,806,061,357 9,833

2021 3,814,576,866 9,855
3,626,665,845 9,746

3,412,095,585 9,629

3,370,606, 164 9,698

3,356,786,734 9,713

3,367,359,716 9,744
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0.12 13 0.06 7
0.24 27 0.12 13
0.24 27 0.12 13
0.24 27 0.12 13
2021 0.02 2 0.06 7
0.02 2 0 0
0.02 2 0 0
0.02 2 0 0
0.92 102 0.48 53
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60 40
120 80
120 80
120 80
2021 10 40
10 0
10 0
10 0
460 320
-0.10 -0.10 -1.93 -1.75
2.43 2.42 -0.69 -0.48
7.80 7.96 4.58 4.84
-0.96 -1.03 -2.62 -2.18
100x
10
10,000
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1,126,302 246,498 879,804
(1,126,302) (246,498) (879,804)
61,776 661,560 280,020
(61,776) (661,560) (280,020)
61,310 98,361 242,969
(61,310) (98,361) (242,969)
211,506 65,521 388,954
(211,506) (65,521) (388,954)
3,340,569 222,631 3,117,938
(3,340,569) (222,631) (3,117,938)
134,461 929,636 2,322,763
(134,461) (929,636) (2,322,763)
2,018,963 698,832 3,642,894
(2,018,963) (698,832) (3,642,894)
292,891 2,059,636 1,876,149
(292,891) (2,059, 636) (1,876,149)
139,992 4,587 135,405
(139,992) (4,587) (135,405)
13,275 50,556 98,124
(13,275) (50,556) (98,124)
11,138 34,347 74,915
(11,138) (34,347) (74,915)
1,111 26,655 49,371
(1,111) (26,655) (49,371)
588,854 113,665 475,189
(588, 854) (113,665) (475,189)
1,246 50,716 425,719
(1,246) (50,716) (425,719)
8,077 24,553 409,243
(8,077) (24,553) (409,243)
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2,108 39,246 372,105
(2,108) (39,246) (372,105)
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2021 28

63,548,669

468,996,501
49,371

3,626,665,845
372,105

3,912,075
388,954

19,700,876
1,876,149

110.58
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62,718,701 6,935,434
146,393 16,188
1,111,068 122,862
1,297 143
171,193 18,931
16,066 1,777
64,164,718 7,095,335
1,509,286 166,897
7,844 867
62,423 6,903
33,573 3,713
25,038 2,769
14,954 1,654
9,533 1,054
7,788 861
2,998 332
2,094 232
398,565 44,073
35,186 3,891
2,109,282 233,244
62,055,436 6,862,090
60,395,415 6,678,525
1,660,021 183,565
62,055,436 6,862,090
9,499
9,746
10.06 1,112
10.50 1,161




EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 28

2,941,253 325,244
2,941,253 325,244
512,749 56,700
452,426 50,029
70,481 7,794
55,782 6,168
24,105 2,666
15,081 1,668
15,002 1,659
2,813 311
78,820 8,716
1,227,259 135,710
1,713,994 189,533
(99,040) (10,952)
1,499,035 165,763
1,399,995 154,811
(2,483,808) (274,659)
(1,389,467) (153,647)
(3,873,275) (428,307)
(2,473,280) (273,495)
(759, 286) (83,962)

110.58
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2021 28

1,713,994 189,533
1,399,995 154,811

(3,873,275) (428,307)

(759, 286) (83,962)

(63,238) (6,993)

(300,078) (33,183)

(78,475) (8.678)

(383, 669) (42,426)

(825,460) (91,279)

1,111 96,248 10,643
2,108 199,282 22,037
211,506 2,135,376 236,130
292,891 3,093,559 342,086
26,655 (2,396,869) (265,046)
39,246 (3,615, 856) (399,841)
65,521 (648, 486) (71,710)
2,059,636 (21,796,912) (2,410,303)
(22,933, 658) (2,536,004)

(24,518,404) (2,711,245)

86,573,840 9,573,335

62,055,436 6,862,090

110.58
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2021 28

(759, 286) (83,962)
(32,516,566) (3,595,682)
50,812,410 5,618,836

(94,758) (10,478)
99,040 10,952
2,483,808 274,659
1,389,410 153,641
43,604 4,822
(32,576) (3,602)
(295) (33)

5,686 629
2,534 280
(12,022) (1,329)
(19,107) (2,113)
(676) (75)

7,347 812
8,791 972
21,417,344 2,368,330
5,525,048 610,960
(27,075,792) (2,994,041)
(825,460) (91,279)
(22,376,204) (2,474,361)
(958,860) (106,031)
1,105,253 122,219
146,393 16,188
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2021 28
2021 2021
28 28 2021 28 2021 28
9,878 10,045 10.40 1,150 10.73 1,187
©) 177 224 0.25 28 0.24 27
(436) (443) (0.35) (39) (0.35) (39)
(259) (219) (0.10) (11) (0.11) 12)
(120) (80) (0.24) QN 0.12) (13)
9,499 9,746 10.06 1,112 10.50 1,161
(2.63) (2.19) (0.95) (1.03)
468,997 3,626,666 3,912 432,589 19,701 2,178,537
2.06 1.64 1.58 1.55
1.86 2.30 2.43 2.30

@

110.58
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2021 28
(@D)
101.1
101.1
62.5
Alternative Loan Trust 2005-4 Class 1A2
706,995 5.50% due 04/25/35 1.0 606,718
Alternative Loan Trust 2007-0A8 Class 1Al
630,472 0.30% due 06/25/47() 0.9 550,221
Atrium Hotel Portfolio Trust 2017-ATRM Class
E
111,000 3.16% due 12/15/36(M).(> 0.1 89,003
Bancorp Commercial Mortgage 2019-CRE6 Trust
Class D
100,000 2.41% due 09/15/36().(> 0.2 99,015
BANK 2017-BNK4 Class XA
059,940 1.40% due 05/15/50® 0.1 58,775
BANK 2017-BNK6 Class XA
1,439,239 0.82% due 07/15/60® 0.1 55,600
BANK 2018-BNK10 Class XA
1,860,131 0.73% due 02/15/61® 0.1 79,081
Bank 2019-BNK19 Class AS
82,000 3.45% due 08/15/61 0.1 89,730
BANK 2020-BNK25 Class AS
8,000 2.84% due 01/15/63 0.0 8,425
BBCMS 2018-TALL Mortgage Trust Class F
100,000 3.35% due 03/15/37(M).(> 0.1 89,438
Bear Stearns ARM Trust 2007-1 Class 2Al
316,166 2.80% due 02/25/47® 0.5 311,722
Bear Stearns Asset Backed Securities | Trust
2007-HE6 Class 1Al
183,120 1.37% due 08/25/37() 0.3 183,993
Benchmark 2020-B19 Mortgage Trust Class XA
999,140 1.78% due 09/15/53® 0.2 113,354
Benchmark 2020-1G3 Mortgage Trust Class XA
2,538,560 0.73% due 09/15/48(.® 0.2 97,796
BX Trust 2017-SLCT Class D
42,911 2.16% due 07/15/34M.( 0.1 42,884
BX Trust 2017-SLCT Class E
104,550 3.26% due 07/15/34().(> 0.2 104,665
BX Trust 2019-0C11 Class E
135,000 3.94% due 12/09/41(».() 0.2 133,923
BX Trust 2019-0C11 Class XB
5,138,000 0.18% due 12/09/41®.® 0.1 90,764
Carrington Mortgage Loan Trust Series 2006-
NC4 Class A3
595,952 0.28% due 10/25/36(® 0.9 575,389
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(@)

CD 2017-CD4 Mortgage Trust Class XA
1,408,376 1.29% due 05/10/50® 0.1 79,658
CFCRE Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-C8 Class
XA
1,314,603 1.60% due 06/15/50() 0.1 90,304
CHL Mortgage Pass-Through Trust 2006-0A5
Class 2A1
784,290 0.52% due 04/25/46(M 1.1 682,378
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2014-GC19
Class XA
2,079,570 1.14% due 03/10/47®) 0.1 59,269
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2015-GC35
Class XA
1,582,342 0.78% due 11/10/48® 0.1 43,847
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-P7
Class XA
385,435 1.11% due 04/14/50® 0.0 19,687
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2020-555
Class E
100,000 3.50% due 12/10/41(®.(® 0.1 92,053
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2020-555
Class F
100,000 3.50% due 12/10/41®.(® 0.1 90,720
CLNC 2019-FL1 Ltd. Class AS
100,000 1.66% due 08/20/35(1.(2 0.2 100,658
COMM 2013-CCRE9 Mortgage Trust Class XA
17,271,051 0.09% due 07/10/45® 0.0 29,371
COMM 2013-LC6 Mortgage Trust Class XA
1,289,655 1.32% due 01/10/46® 0.0 23,513
COMM 2015-LC21 Mortgage Trust Class XA
2,259,670 0.69% due 07/10/48() 0.1 56,606
CSAIL 2019-C18 Commercial Mortgage Trust
Class XA
1,278,304 1.08% due 12/15/52(®) 0.1 89,394
CSMC 2020-NET Class A
105,000 2.26% due 08/15/37(® 0.2 107,436
CSMC Trust 2017-LSTK Class C
51,000 3.23% due 04/05/33® 0.1 50,792
CSMC Trust 2017-LSTK Class D
61,000 3.33% due 04/05/33@.() 0.1 60,521
CSMC Trust 2017-LSTK Class E
89,000 3.33% due 04/05/33®.® 0.1 87,962
CSMC Trust 2017-LSTK Class XACP
7,012,000 0.00% due 04/05/33@.® 0.0 70
CSMC Trust 2017-LSTK Class XBCP
2,553,000 0.00% due 04/05/33@.® 0.0 2
DBUBS 2017-BRBK Mortgage Trust Class E
100,000 3.53% due 10/10/34.® 0.2 102,840
Deephaven Residential Mortgage Trust 2017-1
Class A2
48,117 2.93% due 12/26/46(.® 0.1 48,164
Exantas Capital Corp. 2019-RS07 Ltd. Class A
36,482 1.11% due 04/15/36(.@ 0.1 36,437
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(@)

Exeter Automobile Receivables Trust 2021-1
Class D
250,000 1.08% due 11/16/26 0.4 248,910
Fannie Mae REMICS 2018-33 Class A
1,139,709 3.00% due 05/25/48 1.9 1,205,881
FNMA REMICS Class BZ
2,454,422 3.00% due 05/25/44 4.3 2,608,902
FNMA REMICS Class KT
1,500,000 2.50% due 12/25/49 2.5 1,528,558
Fontainebleau Miami Beach Trust 2019-FBLU
Class E
85,000 3.96% due 12/10/36®.® 0.1 86,397
Freddie Mac Multifamily Structured Pass
Through Certificates Class A2
1,500,000 1.72% due 07/25/35 2.3 1,445,051
Freddie Mac REMICS 4223 Class SB
720,585 5.28% due 07/15/43® 1.2 750,386
Freddie Mac REMICS Class BZ
3,681,633 3.00% due 04/15/44 6.3 3,898,366
GAIA Aviation Ltd. Class A
354,252 3.97% due 12/15/44(.(® 0.6 346,226
Government National Mortgage Association
Class 10
1,799,000 1.00% due 05/16/63(® 0.2 162,271
1,676,000 1.12% due 08/16/62® 0.3 158,634
Grace Trust 2020-GRCE Class D
93,000 2.68% due 12/10/402.® 0.1 89,806
Great Wolf Trust 2019-WOLF Class E
101,000 2.84% due 12/15/36(M).(> 0.2 97,970
Great Wolf Trust 2019-WOLF Class F
101,000 3.24% due 12/15/36(1.( 0.2 95,445
GS Mortgage Securities Corp. Trust 2019-SOHO
Class E
82,000 1.99% due 06/15/36(M.(> 0.1 77,751
GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2015-GC28 Class
XA
1,447,196 0.99% due 02/10/48® 0.1 47,370
GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2017-GS6 Class
XA
876,234 1.03% due 05/10/50® 0.1 47,386
GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2017-GS7 Class
XA
980,815 1.12% due 08/10/50 0.1 52,988
GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2018-GS9 Class C
200,000 4.36% due 03/10/51® 0.4 218,218
GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2020-GC45 Class
XA
1,227,433 0.67% due 02/13/53® 0.1 60,527
HPLY Trust 2019-HIT Class F
81,353 3.26% due 11/15/36(M.(> 0.1 77,685
J.P. Morgan Chase Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2019-MFP Class D
120,000 1.77% due 07/15/36(.( 0.2 119,097
Jamestown CLO XII Ltd. Class A2
500,000 2.37% due 04/20/32®.(» 0.8 508,515
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(@)
Jersey Mike"s Funding Class A2
550,000 4.43% due 02/15/50® 0.9 585,998
Jimmy Johns Funding LLC 2017-1A Class A211
241,250 4.85% due 07/30/47® 0.4 253,742

JP  Morgan Chase  Commercial Mortgage
Securities Corp. 2017-FL10 Class D
3,115 2.01% due 06/15/32(.( 0.0 3,107
JP  Morgan Chase  Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2014-C20 Class XA
2,311,190 1.71% due 07/15/47® 0.1 35,466
JP  Morgan Chase  Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2016-JP3 Class B
100,000 3.40% due 08/15/49( 0.2 105,442
JP  Morgan Chase  Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2018-LAQ Class A
54,753 1.11% due 06/15/32(M.(> 0.1 54,752
JP  Morgan Chase  Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2018-WPT Class FFX
67,000 5.36% due 07/05/33®@.() 0.1 67,526
JP  Morgan Chase  Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2020-LOOP Class E
100,000 3.86% due 12/05/38(.(®) 0.1 88,346
JPMBB Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2015-C28 Class C
94,000 4.15% due 10/15/48®) 0.1 92,653
JPMBB Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2015-C32 Class XA
1,027,228 1.21% due 11/15/48® 0.1 33,268
JPMDB Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2019-COR6 Class AS
113,000 3.41% due 11/13/52® 0.2 122,667
JPMDB  Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2020-COR7 Class B
107,000 3.29% due 05/13/53® 0.2 113,818
JPMDB  Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2020-COR7 Class XA
917,438 1.66% due 05/13/53®) 0.2 101,078
Legacy Mortgage Asset Trust 2020-GS4 Class Al
459,555 3.25% due 02/25/602.(% 0.7 465,190
Long Beach Mortgage Loan Trust 2006-9 Class
2A2
1,554,502 0.23% due 10/25/36( 1.1 679,691
MASTR Asset Backed Securities Trust 2007-HEl
Class A3
1,255,811 0.33% due 05/25/37() 2.0 1,217,469
Morgan Stanley Bank of America Merrill Lynch
Trust 2014-C19 Class XA

1,026,260 1.00% due 12/15/47() 0.0 29,722
Morgan Stanley Capital 1 2017-HR2 Class C
100,000 4.22% due 12/15/50 0.2 108,122
Morgan Stanley Capital 1 Trust 2016-UB11
Class XA
1,181,804 1.51% due 08/15/49® 0.1 69,261
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(@)

1,236,425

968,762

91,000

1,689,545

185,000

113,000

1,365,621

612,291

489,394

481,244

477,118

582,477

1,054,807

685,749

1,759,071

55,456

55,456

500,000

250,000

123,371

160,703

500,000

Morgan Stanley Capital 1 Trust 2016-UBS12
Class XA

0.74% due 12/15/493

Morgan Stanley Capital 1 Trust 2017-H1 Class
XA

1.42% due 06/15/50®

Morgan Stanley Capital I Trust 2019-L3 Class
AS

3.49% due 11/15/52

Morgan Stanley Capital I Trust 2019-L3 Class
XA

0.64% due 11/15/52®

MRCD 2019-MARK Mortgage Trust Class G

2.72% due 12/15/36(

Natixis Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2020-2PAC Class D

3.75% due 12/15/38(2)

Option One Mortgage Loan Trust 2007-6 Class
1A1

0.31% due 07/25/37

PMT Credit Risk Transfer Trust 2019-2R Class
A

2.88% due 05/27/231W.(

PRPM 2019-GS1 Class Al

3.47% due 10/25/24.(®

PRPM 2020-1 LLC Class Al

2.98% due 02/25/25@.%

PRPM 2020-5 LLC Class Al

3.10% due 11/25/25@).%

RALI Series 2006-QS13 Trust Class 1A3

6.00% due 09/25/36

RALI Series 2007-QH5 Trust Class All

0.35% due 06/25/37()

RASC Series 2007-EMX1 Trust Class Al3

0.33% due 01/25/37()

Residential Asset Securitization Trust 2006-
A9CB Class A6

6.00% due 09/25/36

Rosslyn Portfolio Trust 2017-R0OSS Class A
1.94% due 06/15/33(.(>

Rosslyn Portfolio Trust 2017-R0OSS Class B
2.24% due 06/15/33(M.(>

SoFi Professional Loan Program 2017-E LLC
Class B

3.49% due 11/26/40(

SoFi Professional Loan Program 2017-E LLC
Class C

4.16% due 11/26/40(

Springleaf Funding Trust 2017-AA Class A
2.68% due 07/15/30®

Sprite 2017-1 Ltd. Class A

4.25% due 12/15/37®

Spruce Hill Mortgage Loan Trust 2020-SH1
Class M1

3.22% due 01/28/50.®
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0.1 36,935

0.1 56,556

0.2 98,674

0.1 80,444

0.3 174,541

0.2 110,947

2.0 1,261,340

1.0 602,934

0.8 495,285

0.8 482,467

0.8 481,768

0.9 549,308

0.8 505,354

1.0 637,887

1.5 918,074

0.1 55,453

0.1 55,733

0.8 519,424

0.4 261,813

0.2 123,758

0.3 160,597

0.8 506,658
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(@)

Stack Infrastructure Issuer LLC Class A2
460,000 1.89% due 08/25/45® 0.7 462,788
Starwood Mortgage Residential Trust 2018-IMC2
Class A2
307,358 4.22% due 10/25/48®.® 0.5 316,443
Starwood Mortgage Residential Trust 2018-IMC2
Class A3
307,358 4.38% due 10/25/48®2.() 0.5 316,809
Steele Creek CLO 2016-1 Ltd. Class AR
500,000 1.34% due 06/15/31(M.(> 0.8 498,160
Tharaldson Hotel Portfolio Trust 2018-THPT
Class E
2,430 3.45% due 11/11/341.® 0.0 2,272
THL Credit Wind River 2018-1 Clo Ltd. Class B
500,000 1.89% due 07/15/30D.® 0.8 500,097
UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-C1 Class
XA
1,061,004 1.52% due 06/15/50 0.1 77,786
UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-C3 Class B
100,000 4.09% due 08/15/50® 0.2 106,719
UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-C3 Class
XA
2,366,772 1.10% due 08/15/50() 0.2 122,404
UBS-Barclays Commercial Mortgage Trust 2013-
C5 Class XA
1,654,073 0.91% due 03/10/46®.® 0.0 21,933
VCAT 2019-NPL2 LLC Class Al
193,706 3.57% due 11/25/49(.(®) 0.3 194,133
Vericrest Opportunity Loan Trust 2019-NPL2
Class Al
309,682 3.97% due 02/25/49®.(% 0.5 310,858
Verus Securitization Trust 2021-R1 Class M1
500,000 2.34% due 10/25/63® 0.8 503,554
Visio 2019-2 Trust Class M1
1,575,000 3.26% due 11/25/54®.® 2.6 1,588,149
VOLT LXXXV LLC Class AlA
188,844 3.23% due 01/25/50(.(% 0.3 189,558
Washington Mutual Mortgage Pass-Through
Certificates WMALT Series 2007-2 Trust Class
1A1
479,695 7.00% due 04/25/37 0.4 278,694
Washington Mutural Asset-Backed Certificates
WMABS Series 2006-HE3 Trust Class 1A
835,620 0.27% due 08/25/36(M 1.3 790,258
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2016-
C33 Class XA
760,095 1.62% due 03/15/59() 0.1 50,205
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-
C38 Class XA
914,154 1.02% due 07/15/50® 0.1 45,380
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2019-
C54 Class XA
1,464,127 0.84% due 12/15/52®) 0.1 91,567
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Q)
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2020-
C56 Class B
104,000 3.75% due 06/15/53(® 0.2 114,509
Wells Fargo Mortgage Backed Securities 2006-
AR14 Trust Class 2A1
571,801 2.77% due 10/25/36() 0.9 548,966
38,799,052
6.9
U.S. Treasury Bond
2,000,000 1.63% due 11/15/50 2.9 1,750,313
600,000 1.88% due 02/15/51 0.9 559,031
U.S. Treasury Note
2,100,000 0.63% due 08/15/30 3.1 1,949,719
4,259,063
31.7
Fannie Mae Pool
245,022 2.00% due 11/01/40 0.4 250,274
966,127 2.00% due 10/01/50 1.6 967,769
2,000,000 2.41% due 10/01/29 3.5 2,118,209
1,500,000 2.44% due 01/01/32 2.5 1,575,664
3,871,452 2.50% due 11/01/34 6.7 4,109,761
675,583 3.00% due 11/01/46 1.2 716,575
556,400 3.00% due 07/01/47 0.9 588,937
1,444,679 3.50% due 01/01/46 2.5 1,572,194
1,884,527 4.00% due 03/01/47 3.3 2,062,791
Freddie Mac Gold Pool
1,423,543 3.00% due 11/01/46 2.4 1,500,043
987,682 3.50% due 08/01/46 1.7 1,085,329
250,523 3.50% due 11/01/46 0.4 273,299
Freddie Mac Pool
980,141 2.00% due 11/01/40 1.6 1,001,152
954,594 2.00% due 10/01/50 1.6 956,219
836,472 3.00% due 07/01/47 1.4 882,370
19,660,586
62,718,701
63,548,669 62,718,701
63,548,669 101.1 62,718,701
(1.0 (663,265)
100.0 62,055,436
(6,862,090,113 )
(12021 28 Floating Rate
(2)144A 1933 144A
(3)2021 28 Variable Rate
(4)2021 28
110.58
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( )
( ) «( )
( )
Brown
Brothers
) 25,606 2021 30 242 1 1
Harriman & ( ) ( ) ( )
Co.
CITI PB 484,600,010 2021 30 (4,594,591) (44,506)  (44,506)
CITI PB 81,872 2021 30 (8.622,896) 909 909
CITI PB 47,419 2021 30 (5.,026,821) 220 220
1,129 (44,507)  (43,378)
( )
( )
( ) ( )
( )
Brown
Brothers * "
Harrine & 989 2021 30 ©) 0) 0
Co.
Brown
Brothers
Harrinan & 175,405 2021 30 (1,656) ) ©)
Co.
CITI PB 3,855,023,632 2021 30 (36,550, 261) (354,049)  (354,049)
Brown
Brothers 9,227 2021 30 (969,270) 126 126
Harriman &
Co.
Brown
Brothers 1,351,342 2021 30 (143,115,762) 7,576 7,576
Harriman &
Co.
CITI PB 651,752 2021 30 (68,643,324) 7,235 7,235
14,937  (354,058)  (339,121)
0.50
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2021 28
2017
2012 10 15
2021 a CIMA
2017 30
50
NRSRO
NRSRO
2020 12 CIBC
UFJ UFJ PB
UFJ UFJ
PB SMBC
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2021 28

2021 28
62,718,701 62,718,701
16,066 16,066
62,734,767 62,734,767
2021 28
398,565 398,565
398,565 398,565
FASB ASC 740

50
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12

2,945,465
22,652,825
2021 28
2020 29
2021 28
2020 29
2021 28

(

)

62,611

(

)
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9,051
43
24 217,243
39
24 1,281,330
)
)
) D
6,860,450 38,110,582 2,527,093 39,075,715 86,573,840
96,248 199,282 2,135,376 3,093,559 5,524,465
(2,396,869) (3.615,856)  (648,486)  (21,796,912)  (28,458,123)
(63,238)  (300,078) (78,475) (383, 669) (825, 460)
(94,521)  (353,515) (23,433) (287,817) (759, 286)
4,402,070 34,040,415 3,912,075 19,700,876 62,055,436
74,915 409,243 242,969 3,642,894 4,370,021
1,111 2,108 211,506 292,891 507,616
(26,655) (39,246)  (65,521)  (2,059,636)  (2,191,058)
49,371 372,105 388,954 1,876,149 2,686,579
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89.16

10

2021
1,350,747
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91.48 10.06 10.50

10,000

10.00

2021 28
28 158,539

10
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15
15
2017
ASC 815-10-50
a b
c
ASC 815
1SDA 1SDA
1SDA
2021 28 NNA
MNA
(©)
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 7,702 (10) 7,692
Citibank PB 8,364 (8,364)
16,066 (8,374) 7,692
2021 28 MNA
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MNA
(©)
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 10 (10)
Citibank PB 398,555 (8,364) 390,191
398,565 (8,374) 390,191
@
2021 28
16,066 (398,565)
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2021 28
1,489,522 (1,389,410)
0.68 0.03 0.25
0.22
0.40 0.35
2021 28
512,749 2021 28 33,573
0.07 2.5
0.06 2.5
0.05
60,000
0.05
50,000
2021 28 70,481 2021
28 14,954
0.015
15,000 2021
28 15,002 2021 28 9,533
0.02
2021 28 15,081
2021 28 2,094
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2021

28

62,423

FATCA/CRS

2021
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0.60

452,426

140,000

1,500

2007 - 2008
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CovID-19
COVID-19
12
13
FASB 2018 28 ASU 2018-13 820
ASU 2018-13 ASU 2018-13
ASC 820 an
entity shall disclose at a minimum at a minimum
ASU 2018-13
ASC 820
2019 12 15
14
2021
2021 2021 942
183,654 102,089 29,961
2021 2021 338,415
2,582,461 273,529
2,296,175
17,452 129,895
30,778 111,698
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMEMT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
February 28, 2021

{Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)
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Buvat!

brvmdmark s i peoundies, of velus | of UE0 63, LU0 669)

Cah

Foce vabie for invemment wokd

Rocavable lor mksoiphcn proceads

Ertmrest recaivable

Lirdwal ped appreciation sn b read foregn tomency eschangs mrkrsis
Total assets

Lighilitin:

Papible for Units redesmed

Papablefor invesments parchased

Agir i ditribann e fae

Anerd m anagpem et foes

Acrugd profemmcnl e

Anerard custodean ond sub-sdministrator'sfam
Aprusdirusion fees

aprrusd el sgand fees
Arcrsd reg @ration feed

Arorerd agent com peny's fees

Urrnahrnd depracintion on fors snd foneign aurrency anchangs oon rids
(khar asperaes

Total kishilties

et Anets Sttribitabde to Unitholdars

sarnnbynls of Net S5pets:

Pl i gl

Total diptributable mwrrirgy

et Azpetr Steributable to Unitholden

Mt Asset Value per Uit

{5 Mgnthly Denbut ign Chadi Y S, 596,501 + 45,371 Unj sutitanding)
LIPS el il DBt iy Chiil IV U626, EG5 045 & IT2, 105 Unii &oft bl
(LD heonthly Destrbution Class USD 312,075 = 388,954 Ursts outst anding]
LS SamisAnnaal Destrilbatien Clyss USEH 19, TO0AT6+ & 576, 149 Lint s outstending)

LI ) GLT18,T0n
]

L111,0E8

L

171,183

16,065

64,164,718

L 509, i
T84
B4
EEREES
2503
18950
453
T.TE

o 60,335,415
LGELOT
D B2 055 436

il P45
= 9, T4E
(] 10.06
] 10,50

l

The atctamparyiing notes ane an integral part of these finandial statements.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMEMNT OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2021
{Expressed in United States Dollar)
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Irmatmant Incoma:
]
Totml Irverstment rosms

Expandas;
Mlanigam e e
Dustributor*s faes
Dok dd fuch. dlen Pt oS T
Prodwi gnal lees
Transer agent fees
Agunt company's fees
Trugtise loei
Begistration fees
Cthay arperaes
Totnl Expenoes

Nt Inve s ent |ndom &

Renlired snd Unreslised Guin/[Laie):
Rgaliped oy oee)
It i i SCLT
Foreign curngrdy trarisctiong ard borwaed forsign cumancy aodhardge contracts
Hlig rmalaseed g
Onargge i unresl zed appoeo i ionfdeprecwton)
Lfrw il i o i L
Foreign currency transsd ions. end forw ord i ord gn comency sachange contract s
Mot cRange in undealined depriciicn
Hee realied and uireaied lomes

Mt deeranse in net BaiEts redulting from operstion

S0 1448] 253
FETTRLL]

512,749
452478
T 4=
5570
28,108
15,081
15007
LY
TILEED
Lraf id

S—— Y

[Fa040)
L 06 O35

LIS s

(2.483,808)
{L3BLAGT

[ENEEFILT]
{2,473, 280)

UsD

The atctamparyiing notes ane an integral part of these finandal statements.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMENT OF CHAMGES [N MET ASSETS
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021
(Expressed in United States Dallar)

Incroze (Daoreare] in Mk S cake from:

‘Oparationa:
gt invegtment moome

LD 1L, TERO0

et realiaed gaing 1, e, 0a%
et chisnge i unresl ced depretiation 3,873,275}
el iy | it EEeRE | reiu iR Eram Sgeraiond 755 I‘Bﬁt
Ditributions to Unithalden:
¢ Wonk by Distrikatson Jess {B3.238)
J S Shnnuad Destnbaation Olas {300,078}
LISD hlaent by (D ety s {78,475}
LD SarniAnnusd Distrdsotion Qe | 336600
Fotel Distrbestions d, S50}
Caphal Transsctions:
Ui i
P Menthly Dmtrikatson Qaea [ L111 Unag) 96, 246
W en el Dastribagion Class {2 100 Undts] 190 03
IS0 hanihuly Tt n batecen Classi 211 505 Lings) 2,135,378
LISD S| -Annusl Denibotion Chead (292,831 Unad) 393,559
Uit s radeem ed
JPY Miant by Denbarsen Clasd (26,655 Unas) [2,396.863)
Wt S ~Annust Destribortion Class: (39, 266 Linita) [3.615056)
LD Manihly Dt nbotion Qessi(B5, 521 Unas) (40, 805K
LD Sami~Anrunl Deboborion CJees | 2.053635 Unas} [23,796,912)
et decrewss |inonet sssets resulting from capital bren sdions (23933658}
Total Decreade bn et daetn (24.518 404}
et Ancete
Beginnirg of e BE, 57080
o c To__msie

The atctamparyiing notes ane an integral part of these finandial statements.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMEMT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2021
{Expressed in United States Dollar)
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CarhFlows from apersting acthitler:
et St in Nt EEsEE aeuRing from operaions

ol e B To PeCOPORE The et INCrewdE in mel B el reikivg from operstions to met oerh used i
aperaticg sfiAtes

Purchiang of nvestments

Proceeds from sale and matunty of wvestments

et aem oty et ard accretion ) of peeeem §and diseounts on corponats dehi ol geeions and shom Tems
sregdmmty

Al bosses o in i Ebtunitis

Mg in urrasi fed degpreastion on Festm anti

Charge in urreslived deprecation on forwerd foreign ourency exchenge mnbracks

Changs In siiets and lishilitia: relsted ta operaticni:
Dumropse n interest raveivabile

Ducrumne in Scorpsd cuitodion mnd . de i mreor i et
Ducrease m acorued professonl fees

brecrase i mocnd o brust e fees

B i Becned rega e s lees

Dicromss i acorosd = arsgement bt

Decrepse v scmeed d ignbutor's fees

Dcrmims in Scoroed Bgent oom pany's s

bricreass i socnusd tranafer sgent fees

rerdss i tended other sapanses

et padb used in operating sctheitien

Carhflows uied in firmng skt
P inids brpem LA | rliusd

Papmierd 5 on Lisits reduemed
Eusiribubiors paid to Linitholders

et canh provided by financing acthatine

Met deeranse in eash mod bareipn eurmeney

Catl aned lore gn cutrancy ot begraning o poar
Carhard foreign curreney st end of year

WD \759,286)

(32,516, 566}
S8m2a10

134,758}

59,080
2,453,808
1. 389,410

AL604
1FL5T6)
(205}
5,685
1,534
{ELOZ2p
{19,107}
(676}
7547
£.791

Zldll'g

&, 535,048
(2075, 792}
1835, 8600
e BT 20N

— [snsEn)

1, 105,253
LIs0D 186

The atctamparyiing notes ane an integral part of these finandial statements.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND

FINAMCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

Selected Per Unit Data and Ratios

[Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)
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1P Monthly 1P Sem b Annuaal WED Mamhly  USD Sami-Anmin]
Distribotion Clses  Distdbution Class  Distribustion Cars  Diletribitkon Oz
Fearthe Yaar Ercdesd Fortha Yearnded Forthe YearDnded Forthe YearEnded
Febeunry 28, 2021 Fal 2021 Febeais 2021 Febnawry 28, 7021
et Asset Viakee, bagreieg of pea L5 LEL S L 1040 LED T3
Eigt irveEmant mogm ¢t irz Fril nas [
Bdef realized and wrrestized boses [EECH] LEE]] {00 35] [035F
her prnats in DT iEes resuling rom O B ons [FEET] 1219 [ EI [N
Lrsn d tributipes {120 (B0 {0.24) (017}
et At Vilue, ardof year =t 049 (L F 786 D 06 USD 1050
Total return [FX=] f2uam% 95T (Lo
¥ wy uso uih
Rt o6 Supphes sl A x

Bhet avnats ancdl of yaar [000s) SEE T 6 26, G 3842 15708
Batin of epenses bo avirage net assets 2.08% L% 1.5 1L.5%%

Ratio of Fet sveastmant iroom i b0 @Y eragE nat
it i i.Ba% Fi FEE 1 2.3

= Calouiiated ymrnig srarige Uikl oot Randngion the v

The atctamparyiing notes ane an integral part of these finandal statements.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND

PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS

February 28, 2021

{Expressed in United States Dollar)

Principal % of Fat

[ W Ameint  Seeurity Deiciption Adietd it Wil
FOOD NGO SEEMITEES Q0L %)
URATED $TATES {R0_1%)
AHALT-IACKD SOCURITIES (2 550
Anarmting Lo Trusm 20084 Sl 120

UsD 0§, 45 BN due 04,79/35 LR USD 08, 714
aftarmative Lo Truss 100 7-048 Class 181

wED AT 0.30% du 06,15k (%] 50,721
Atriu Hate Portolo Tru J017-STh G |

[TT] 118,000 L36% o §2/1 556 s L X ] #5003
Emnooep Commancel Mot gage L9 RES Trust Duns D

[T7] LOOO0E  1AL% due 0915 36100 w1 39,008
B 100 T-B0CH Chany W,

(L] EEEET L& dhe B5,1 90 o 2,78
BN TOT TS Chars A

usD LAT T BN due 07A5E0M ¥ 55,600
B ID1R-BNCLD Clats A

D LAGRET 0.7T% due SZAWELM (] e
Bank 1019:BRELS Claos &5

usD A7.000 3.8 due 084 351 [ ¥ ] LR
B J0T0-BNTS Clatd a5

D L= L8N o 805/ L1 ] LR
BECKE FOLA-TALL Momgupe Trut Ceds F

(7] L 1.35% due 03,1 5/371u8 LX] 5, L
Baar SRmarme ARN Trusk 30071 Claas dad

(0] IR 10t 021 (L] "
i v Sdset Baetked Satur i | Toum 300 THEE Gl 143

(1] 18311 LET due 08,0537 (5] 183433
Bendrmark POI0-B19 Mortgege Trust Class K8,

ush 19918 b due i3, 5 L&) P EETS
Banctenatk 27000 Mortgage Tt Clad %

(3] 2558960 0.8 o S L S R L% T
oK Trug® 200 7-ILCT Clmie O

LT 43,811 1.36% dus 071510 LE] -1
Bonl Frunn S8 T00T Claas £

ush 10455 1. 16% dus 075/ 3qikun L & i EE%
B Trust 20090011 O E

D 100 B chu 17,00 it ol (b ki
o Tru® 20090011 Clagd =3

usD 5,138,000 Q.26% s 12098 mw od W0, 64
Camiengi on Mbort gape Loan Trust Senes J0DE-RIC4 Dlass A3

S0 3585 2.78% due 10T AR L& TR
€0 2007004 B ertgagi Trurt Cladd Xk

L] LA0e, 1N 137 s B5,10/80W L] TS
CFCRE Cormsmaprcial Mompape Trom JEIT-C8 D W

ush 1318503 L8 due 06,1 5,/50 1 ol 30, =L
CHL Miorigage Pam-Through Trist 2006 008 Class 241

D T4 Q5% e 0,75 0T B Lirhr]
Cigrons Comsrring 1ol MRort gange Treal 300 S-3C1% Clags od

[T 2075 L. 3A4% due G 0 a7 L ¥] HIE

Commiercial Mot gage Trst DIL5SCYS Class K&

WD 190134 0. ot B1/L 0 0 A3,p4T
Cotigronue Commercial Margags Tt 300 7:PT Class k4

[T 1] 395,455 L.31% e 01 475010 g L5687
CHigronss Commertial Mordgage Trast 2000555 Cladi €

L) 1go.atd LA du § 210 e W et #2040
Cigreus Commireial Mamgage Trut 2000555 Clats F

wsD 100,000 LI due 12/10,/8 1 i 30,72
CLMC DL 9-FLL Ll Class &5

[T 109,00 L6 due 99,7035 A L% L6
QoMM 101 3-CEFEY Mot gk Toat Qs Xa

[T 1717051 L dur BT 0/RSY (1] Hn
DO 101 3406 Mo guge Trust Ol K&

[T 1] 1.169,6%% LET% dhue B0 5™ [ 1] FehE]
AR T15LET hborigag Tt Cigg 4

(1] BISRAT  RENN due 670 8N (¥ 56606
CRAL 2DER-C18 Commierosl Morigage Trust Clavs WA

[ LI L0 due BRI oy LR
G F0I0-4T Cladn &

[T01] 105,000 LI due B8 5ATY [¥] 107,436

The atctamparyiing notes ane an integral part of these finandial statements.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS {continued)
February 28, 2021
{Expressed in United States Dollar)
Priscipald % of Met

[ A Seeurity Desedpa Assen Fair alue
FISET) INCOME SECURITRES (L0 1%) (conlimue)

URATED STATES (1011%) feontinaed)

ASSETRACRED SECURITIES (82 5%) (continurd)

ShiG Trum 103 LT Slaw €

[T 91,000 BTN o 84,05/ 3010 BN D 4p,742
CHIAC Trust T 7L Qam

L1 &5.000 1.5 duk 04,09 FIHUR B &0,521
CEMC Trus 101 TLST Cuw £

wsD 5,000 13I% dhue 04,05/3 100 [ X1 a75%1
CEMIC Trust 791 T-LETE Clags RAeCP

L] 7011000 QO o 5,5 A1 L1 ] "
G Trum 101 TLETH Cap MBCF

D 1.553,800 LTS du 84,05 F3mm (1] %
DEBS 00 7-BREE Mok gape Trus Dass €

usD 1000 1% due 10/ 0 3tk [ & leiaa
Daigstan Rastsdintasd Mertgage Trugt 10170 (i a3

(e SEAT 2N dus 13/74) 0 mm ol 48,068
Exantas Capital Conp. 3099-RE0T L1d Qadd &

wsD A L L% dhue 84,15/ 35 108 X1 a7
Emtaer bkl Reci vabies Trust M021-4 Cass D

L] 13000 100 dum 11,1606 L] 148,000
P Ao REREICS JO10-39 Clite &

[T14] 1,175, 7 L sk 95,2478 L] 1, M08888
Brio BEAACT Cladd 82

[T1] B A5 i due 85,9978 't 3,008 410
PR FENSCS Clags T

(] 1900209 L0 due 11750 T3 1578358
Fortairsetbes hism Desch Tnast 501 5-FDLL Clas £

ush 03,000 R dhue 2/ 03 i LX] ", |7
Frocd o Mt Mot iy Srocuned Pans Thocgh Oetihatis Class &3

S0 1080, 20 L.72% doe 67,25/35 5 | 1,445,051
Fredde Mt FENICS &3 33 Der 58

usD TSR 5.20% dus BT 13 TI0,196
Frgdekin W ae BEhAICS Clinid 82

[T1] BARE 5 i due 4,158 L] X EET
Al Awation Lid, Dass &

(7] 13475 BETH due 12,15/ ag1iua [ 6,226
Goreamara e bt onel R gage Sstociabion Clids 00

wib 1.Tr,000 1O dur S5 &5 a3 wian

wED 1LE76.500 L% due sR16 G [ 5] R E=T1
Grate Trud J60-GRC Qi D

WD 93,000 LAEN dus 12 A QFE 1] 5,000
GO WOl Toust JO159 oF Qs §

[T1] 10L00E LB due 131536100 [ &1 krk
Grgat Woll Toust I3 WORF Cadd F

(L] FLEE L 345 o 32570 1 L& ] 468
55 MACME g Sy ek Cop, T 30155000 Okt [

(1] A1,000 L% e 06 /1 5/ 3G s i LTS
GEMorgage Seounbes Trust 2005528 Cas Ha

(721 LAAT IR 5% due G20 L ¥] Eoh
G ot Secunte Trist 202 7-G Clada =

WD PN LB o 5,1 0/801 o] R
G5 Momgage Securibie Trust J01T-GET Claw =4

[T 1] 80,015 L 12% dhue 08,110,501 o 57568
G Mo Secunie Truen 2098568 Clan ©

(0] 0000 436 due B0 (=] TR
G5 Mormgage Securite Trust 20005085 Duxy KA

iR L1700 QETS dus AL BN oy &0,53T
WY et 2009-H0T Clidd §

[114] 41,358 136 due 1115/ 50 A X1 TS
AP, Worgan Chide Commarosl WMomgege Seounties Trud 1009 MFF Cass 0

uso 12000 L. TT due 67,15/ 35 1l L% 115497
Jarniterwn O M1 L Qi A3

w0 208,000 LATR du 84/20/33 WM ol 08,515
By MR Funding Chas A2

(1] SO0 L&IW due 205500 (L] EELE S
Ay b Fundi ng LLC 200 7-14 Claos A28

[ JALIW AR e 00 T od g

The atotsmparyiing notes ane an integral part of these finandial statements.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND

PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS {continued)

February 28, 2021

{Expressed in United States Dollar)

Primpipa! % of Mt

i ¥ A Security Deaedpt Aspet Fasir Walum
FOSETH IMCEHAE SECURTTBES. G0 1% ) {comtinsed)
URMITED STATTS 01.1%) (rontinged)
ASAET-RACKED SECURTTIES 62 5%) (raatinund)
P bigrgins ik Commireisl o gage Securtest Cop. I8 T-ALld Cam B

[T EIS 1O dus d6 A5 0 E BN D 5,807
P Crape COmm encial WMo gage Securises Trus 1 8-CH0 Clias 8

LI 231519 1.7 dus 0703750 B 5,
P hdongee Orape Com m encisl Momgage Secuntes Trus 201 £0PF Class B

usk 100009 3.87% due 1915/ [ %] 1544
F Wongen Chane Commencial Meor gige Srcuntsss Tt 2018040 s &

1] 6,7 1.31% chuap 06,15/ 1R L 5] TR
P st it Commare i om gape Securtans T 2018-WPT Clasg PR

[1E1:] 67,800 538N e 74/ Ty m ey 7506
P Korgen Orade Commercial WMo gage Seconbes Tred B35 0A00P Class E

usD 1000 185 % due 12415 /5l ul FEL T
FRAMS Commirasl Morgage Seoafiet True 2005000 Qe ©

L1 34,000 A1 due 10 @M B e
FARES Comrior ol Morigege Seourmie Trust 2085052 Duid KA

usk 10T L21% due 1A%/ L8] i ]
FRADR Commueisl Mort gage Secaties Trust 3013-00RE Clam &5

usD 113000 L% doe 1140082 L& LIheeT
PREDR Correrrisl Mortpipe Setuntiod Troe 2010000 Clas B

[151:] L7000 3,398, dhui 85,1 3530 (5] FEET RS
PRADD Coronainl Mot apn Siurileg Trat J070-000T Sa KA

(1] EIRFE RS dus 85,4350 L% 181.0H
Lagary Mot gage Assat Trust T2065 Capral

(1] 45955 3T due 0250 " Lt
Leng Baschiborigage Losn Trt 10069 Catt a2

utp 1,394,507 Q.3% dukr 1071371 ES L E
WASETR Adsel Bached Securtios Tru 2007-HED Cling A3

ush 1,255,811 3:37% due 95/25 3T 4] 1,207.83
Pt g St anbesy Bank: of deeenica Moermill Lynch Tnet 2016019 Class 58

usp 1AM 60 L.00% due 1245470 LT m.m
At 2 bkiey ol | 2007 34RY Qi €

(] L i AT dus 1245800 L& 10,1
Reorpaen Standey Capat el § Trust BI16UB1E Class <8

usE Lislens L1 dus 085 faa (5] 53,160
Aebrgen Standey Capat sl | Trust TOLE 4 BS12 Clay s

Ut 1AM 40 0,74% dus 1245 W ot LSS
eorgan faney Capital | Trust 30171 Class =8

uie T6R.TRY b dh D6 AL S0 4] EA
Pt g Sz andey Copa a1 Trust JO19 LY OliFias

(144 98,000 % e 1171552 L% WATE
Ao g SEandey Capdel | Trust TO1943 Claps M8

usk LASRAN  OE% duslLA%AIN LE] B0
AT 7009 MAGRK MASr e Trugt Owid G

[0 L 1T du 1245800 LR (3R]
Podabisis, COmim oo | Morigege Secunties Trust FO20: 1P s O

L] 113,009 7% due 1245300 o 10947
CRtion CneMontpage Loan Trist 20074 Clem- 1AL

Uik LASEATL G, H% G758 E] 1,263, 08
BT Cric Rk Tranatie Trias 200920 Cliss &

(144:] £11281 LB due 851 TG N 01508
PR 1019551 Claas A1

(T51:] 4398 LATH du 10,25, F4mm o 430, 1L
PR S0 L Chamt &1

UsD g1 280 L5% i 025/ s e ART AT
ERPS J070-5 LG Case &

wih 4r71ie LI0% dus 11,529, 13 [} 487,76
RAL] Sarvirs 2I0E-CRELE Trust Claas LAY

usD SERATT  GDU% due §2/15/38 L L] 48308
Fikd aries 2907-00M5 Trust Oass &1

L] LAEA0T TR duRsRAITY o A

The atctamparyiing notes ane an integral part of these finandial statements.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS {continued)
February 28, 2021

{Expressed in United States Dollar)

Pricicipal % of Nt
[ A Seeurity Deaedpa Assen Fair alue
FISET) INCOME SECURTTRES QL0 1) (conlimae)
UBARED STATES 1011%) feontinued)
ASSETRAERED SECURITIES (82 5%) (continurd)

Bl borign 20070000 Trum Class ak3

[T [EERr ALFIN dus 81,0530 L D 37,7
Fosadartial Aa3et SEnUPTItion Trust 2006 &30E Clam &6

(e 1.1.8m 00 dusr 897573 s 20,074
ot Prwrtbode st 01 ToRI0AES Clats &

wsD 55,45 L.54% dhue 5,1 5/33 18 [ X1 55,453
Figs ftpn Portfolia Tinad 701 T-S1055 Clads B

L] Th 1.34% dor 06, 3B IR L& ] 35,710
S0 Priofesiondl Lo Progrem T01748 LLC Clags B

D 500,003 1498 o 11,1168 [(E] 515424
Sofi Frobessonal Lown Progrsm J0LTE LLC Clats ©

usD 150003 L 15% due 115/ /el (= ®1A13
Springhsd Funding Truit 181 Tt Clikt &

L1 Laan LG du 5730 L&} 1,7
Sprae 0L T Led Ok A

wsD 160,708 AT due iZATETE [ 5] 150,537
Soruce HE W o gage Loan Trust 2070-541 Class MY

L] 04,000 B.T0% dur 970750 i LY ] 306,659
T b LTt P LU Clegs a0

[T14] E000F LB duk a5 o &I
St wiisd Me gape Brndatiol Trut NI Daid ad

[T RS A58 due 50,09 & mm [X] T A4E
Sturwood hor gape Busisential Trus TILEICD et A3

(] 735 AT due 10,75/ EiiLn (%] BLEAT
Stpbe Crewk QL0 F016-1 114, Dot a8

ush 206,000 L34 dhu 06,1 373 Ui on LR
Thiaraidion Mot Portfolio Trust T018-THPT Qs

S0 TN T8 due 11/ /54 (1] LM
THL Croedt ' ind Fiver 0181 Do Ltd, Clags B

usD o900 LB dus ST S R0 10N LX] 00,097
Wt it DA ape Tralt 200708 Clagi e

[T1)] 10168, 804 L0 e £06,1 580 [¥] TI.T8E
B Commuertinl Morigage Truse 230703 Class B

(] L0000 AT due DA 50 07 106,713
B Coemmioia | M orgage Trust 20073 Class Ma

ush 2066,TH L 30% dhusr 0 3750 a7 12404
WEE-Barclays Commartial Mortgage Trisk T013-C3 Clags 8

wip 1454571 3.31% dhar 091G m [T ] nmam
VAT 3019-WPLT LLC Ol Al

S0 195,706 LETH dhue 11,25/ (%] 134133
‘arires Cppoetunity Loen Tret T018-MPLE Claanad

(5] MRERY 57 du 00,11 7/ 1 (L] TLOESE
s fetur RIEFIGN Trust J021-A1 Caid b1

(L] 206,000 1049 dhr 10,15/030 (1] 09,554
WD BELS - Trust Ot M1

(] 1,375,000 B36% due 1125/ 541 15 1,548,148
VOLT LI06 LG Clers A1

uil LI 1375 dhoar 00,755 W [ %] 1Lt
Wi hifghan kot Mot g Pids-Theough Cenficstes WASLT Sones 10073
Tt Chacks .41

[T/] ATAESE T due 14715737 L ¥] TTEASE
W Aan MUt At -Becked Sl it WHIARS Soies J006HED Than
Gl 1a

UsD ERo Xy 0 I7% due 08,5 as L3 LIS
Wil Fangn Comm ercial Wortgage Trst T016-CHF Clagg Mo,

wih Teon9 Lk dusr 20,19,/ 59 0 [} A0, s
‘Wls Fargo Commarcial biortgige Taat T00 7008 Class M8

wsD 415 L00% due 67/1 57501 [¥] 28350
‘Wlls Fargn Comm ercial Wortgege Trst J0L9-C Cliss W8

v LAGLEIT GBS dur 124 [§ LT
Wnlle Fangn Comm arcish Mo gige Truat J070-C% Sl

[T1,] 104003 LT s 86,1 55000 (%] 14503
‘wells Fargn hort gage Bacied Secunties BO0SSRES Trut Class 281

UsD 171401 L77% due 10,25 35 e TR, S
NOT AL ASSET BACKED S ORITES. BTN
GENERMBATMT 00RO § 575)
WE Treadury Bord

(1] 200,800 LET% due 11,1550 L] L.750313

The atctamparyiing notes ane an integral part of these finandial statements.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS {continued)
February 28, 2021

{Expressed in United States Dollar)

Pricicipal % of Nt
[ A Seeurity Deaedpa Assen Fair alue
FISED INCOME SECURITRES QL0 1) (conlimar)
UBARED STATTS (1011%) feontinund)
GEVERNBAENT DOKDS § 5% {continued)

(154 £a0 fid oS s 83,1954 LT Y LD ELLTE
LS Wreskiury Bote
LIE i) 2.1 00D 03 DUETS, due 8/ 550 31 L, 245715
TOT AL GOVER RRENT BORDS JEHHG
BACR T AGE-BACKE D SECURITIES (31,794}
Wiy A b Pl
L1 345053 LD dus 110108 2] 150374
s 5 1IT 100 due 10,9150 LS5 6T, TEF
usp 4 03 8% due IDALT 33 LB
D 1,500, 0} LA4% due 0,052 15 1,575 6648
usD 2ATI s T50% due 110013 T 4,10%, 761
R ETREED 1,00% due 1191 i1 TLES TS
{151 S A 1,005 dar BT LY wr San 8T
L1 ) 144457 LT dus 00015 ] LSTE1M
L1 ] 1884517 A0 due 230000 LK 2,627
Fracdie e Gold Poal
WD 143040 L0T% due 11018 T4 1.0 {43
LT ] a7 R} RS s B 10 i 1,085 00
D 130528 5,505 dus 81,0008 [-E ] TR 2
Fraddie e Pool
ush EELEET LO0% due 11008 g 1,003,057
R SR 100 due 10910 e P T1P
[15-+] AT Lo duw ETRLD 4 U ]
TOT AL RBORT Gl R - ATRED SECLIRIMEES A8 e
WO AL UNETED STATES b2 71800
TOT AL oD BOORAE SECURITIES (ot LRDED S508,869] B2 JuEFoL
WO AL WIS TIVEMETS il URD 63 588 50 Loi1% RO 62718100
LIARTLITIES P EXCESS OF CASH AMD DTHER ASLETS 1LE [Pl
MIT ASMITS imos o 63 0 A

(b} Foating Rata b of Fetvuary 28, 2001

¥} 13d4 Spourky - Saouriy svengt Tfroem regicirstion under 1444 of Ehe Seoorioe: ot of 1533, These pecuritier may be nesofid in
trancactions st from repetrstion, typiclly to qualified it utionsl buyers Uniei otferwine relcsbed, thte iscuries sre ot
condidened to ba iSgad.

¥} Varskle Rafe s of Februsry 28, 221

(8] Wap Aate &t of Febrasny 28, 3070

JBY Muonthhy Bidrbotion Slars Foremrd Foralpn Swrency Bxchangs Confracts

Pt Ursrnalized
Motionad Settlemant IWotiorial Urersaliped Unrealized  Sppraciation
Swy Counteparty Amourt Ous Eul Amewrt  Appreciwtion  (Deprecieion) (Deprecistion)
WY Drcreen Brothars i & G0 JSE0E OISWSEIL LD &) D ST 1] w0 {1
Y OmER SELE00NI0 0330001 gD {25594, 551) = [4450E) [44,50E])
UEy OnPE BLETY DR02EIE ) {BEXY 3] k] = o]
UED OTFR ATEE R B {RODE.AH1] 2 = ]
L 179 D 307) s 43,171
IP¥ Semi-Anninl Distribsnion Cluss Forward Foneign Cumanoy Exchange Cesviracis
Pt Wrvrmalined
Motiorad  Seitlemant Motior] Unreslieed Unrealized  Apprecstben
By counterpany a Duts  Sal Amout  Appracistion  (Depreciation) [Deprocation]
Y Qg Brothers Hamiman & Co Wy 030 LED {3} - " [
BT Bircreen Brgd e Marmesn B G 1T 0% 0080 E uio (iR 1 5] - (L] [}
o anes BESS M0ENT  03/30/0NIL L [, 594,241 ) - (¥ 4045) {r4049)
UED Brown Brothars Harmesen & Qo .17 O3 3uDeI By [HE3,1T0) 12 - i
e Brooeen Brokhars Harmesn & Co L¥LIAT 03300911 ¥ 143113, 73] LA-TL] e LEE
WD OTiPR VLT Ot L 58 EAT,5 1) i - LA k]
L &537 [FSAPSE] RO {33R17]
® i rero balsrc e represenks rourding to leas Shan USD 0,50
Cumery |apard
- P TN
LIt L% Dozllad

The atctamparyiing notes ane an integral part of these finandial statements.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

ORGAMIZATION

Doubleline Total Aetien Fung (the “Furdd”) is 2 series trust of the MNakko AM Offshone Funds, an open-ended umil tust
established by & supplemental trust dedd dated Felwuary B, 2017 (the “Supplamerts] Trust Deed™ |, under the laws of the
Cayrran Isands. Nikks AM O shore Furds was established by a mester trust desd dated October 15, 2012 (the “Master
Trust Deed”), under the laws af the Cayman dends sed it liosnted with the Cayman slands Monetary Authofity puriusrd
ter section S{1)(a) of the Mutuad Furds Act (2021 Reision]. The Fund comenenced operations on March 30, 2007,

The Fund's g5sats are mandged on 3 diy to day basis by Mikko AM Global Cayman Lisnited (the “Manager” ], The Manager
delegates investment mansgamert duties o Nikke Asset Maragement Co., Ud, {the “nvestrent Menage”]l The
Ienvestinard Marager delegates imvestinent management cuties 19 Doubleline Capital LP, [the "Sub-lrsestment Maraper-].
The admanistration of the Furd is delegated 1o Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. (the *G = and “Sub-Adminisirator”],
a lrited partnership organized under the laws of the State of New York,

Thairvestenent chjsctive of the Fund is 1o achiee & mid to kong 1enm totel returm through ircorme and capital appreciation.
Under noemal ciroumrstances, the Series Trust shall imesst over 5035 of i net assets in residential and commencial

minrigage-backed seourities, acthely Alloceted between agency and non-agerdy seourities.

Thise imvetments ey inchade rrorgage-backed securities of any maturity of type, induding those guaraneed by, o
secured by collateral that b guirartieed by, the Urited 5tates Goverrment, its agencies, instrumeritadities or sporsored
corporations, and privately ived morigage-backed seasities eated ot the tine of purdhase A3 or highes by Moady's of
A4 or higher by SEF or of an egusvalent rating by any other natiorally recogrired statistical rating organization {“NRSRO)
that ks been resdgpninsd by the LS Sedurities and Exchinge Corremission of untited seoaities that s determined by the
Ireestinerd Marager of it defegates 1o be of comparable guality, These imvestments abo indude, among others, U5
Goverrment margage pass-dhrough securities, colloteraliced morgage obligations, multicliss pess-through securities,
private mortgage pass-through securities.

Thae Series Trust may also imvest in short term imeestments, such a5 notes issued by W5, Gowsrnmen agencaes, and bords,
delst ecurities and other fued incorme irtruments iswed by U.S. Governmentsl of privele-secior entities, of other mset-
backed cbligations, collateralived loan obligatiors, and obgatiors of the US Govemment and ils agendes,
instrumertalities and iponiored corporatind.

The Series Trust may irvest in bonds of any oredit cuality, induding those that ane 3t the time of Irvestment ureated or
rated B3+ o lower by S&P or Bal or lower by Maody's of of an equivalent rating by any other NASRD. Bonds and fixed
income Irstrumants rated below lmestment grade, or such instruments that ame vnrated and determined by the
Iprepstinirt Marager of its defiegates 1o be of compareble quality, are Pagh viekd, high risk bonch, commaonly krown s urk
bords’, The Series Trust may imvest wp 10 a third of s net amets in junk bonds, bank loans and assigraments that are sither
rated balow imvesiment grace of are urrated bud def irtke by 1he Ir b Mandger of its delegates 1o be of

comparable cuality, and crectit default seaps of companies in the high yleld uriverse.

The Series Trust may inves! & porion of 95 ret steedd in imeerae foater securities snd interest-only and priccipal-acky
seCLrities,

Unger tha termns of the Sepplemaontal Toust Deed and the Master Trust Deed, FrstCanibbean international Sank and Trust
Company {Cayman] Lamited (formedy CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limdted up to March 13, J020) (the
“Truster” and the “Administrator”) lsnamed as Trustee of the Fund,

The Marsger appointed MEtsubishi WE) Mongsn Stanley PB Securities Co., 1t {formesdy Mitsubishi UF] Morgan Stanley
Seourities Co, Lhel) fo act as Agent Company [the “Agent Company”™) and the Marager appoirtned Mitsubschi U Mongan
Stanley PR Securities Co., Lid, {formedy Mitsobichi LE] Morgan Stanley Securities Co., Ltd.) and SMBC Trust Bark Ltdl 1o act
irs Distribwdars jthe Brtrbutors™) of Unitsin Japan.,

SLPARLARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACOOUNTING FOLICIES

The Fund i an iresitement Company that folloas the scourting ard reporting guidance in FASS Accounting Sandards
Cocificrion 946

L of Estrmotes

The secommpanying finandis statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting prnciples genecally accepted in
the United 5tates of America ["LL5 GAAP"]. The greparstion of finendal statement s n socordance with L5 GAAP requanes
the Fupd's marsgamant 1o rade estimete and ssumptions the sfec the reported amounts of aets and lishdftie: and
dischosures of contingent assels and liabilities &% the date of the fnencial stalements and the reported amourts of
reverues and expendes during the repoting period. Actual results, induding the ultimate amourt realiosd upon the sale of
faar valued imnstrments, coud differ from those estamates and such dilferences may be significam.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

SURARARY OF SIGNIPCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [tontnand)

Bosis of Accounting

Seourity and contraciual trarsactions ane reconded on a tradefcontract-date basis. interest income is recorded on an
effective yield basis, net of any applicable withholding tax, Interest sxpense and ofher expensas anerecorded on an acorual
bask, Realized gains and losses from seournity transactions are computed on the basis of the sverage cost of the securities
sold of covered, Charges in the wluatkon of imvestmerts ane recorded in the Statement of Operations as unrealized
appreciation or depredation.

Wakurtion of imveshmenis

Bonds ard other debt seourities, inchecing restricted securities {other than shori-term obligatiors but Including lsted
issues) are fair vabued 21 their last sale prioe in the principel market In which such securities ane noemallly traded, on the
basks of vabuiticns fumished by 3 pricing service, use of which kas been approved by the Imaestment Manager, of if no sabe
has ocoumed, the bid price on the valuation date as provicded by brokers who are market makers in the securities. All debs
seciaities with bess than 12 reonths to maturity date, in principle shall be fair valued wsing an amonized cost effected by an
effecive yield acoumulated famorization method to thelr maturily date with adjustments based on comparison with
misrket prices &5 recuired,

In accordance with the authoritative guidance on fair value mesturements and disdlodures under LS GAA7, the Fund
dinchoses the fair value of its imeesiments ina kierardhy that priceitizes the inputs 10 waluation techriques wied to measre
the fiir value. The hierarchy graes the highest priocity to valustions based upon vnadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or labilities {lewed 1 measurement] and the lowest priority 10 waluatiors based wpon vnobserable
inputs that are significant tor the veluation (Levd 3 messuremont s The guidanoe estabishes thoee beveds of the fair vabue
higrarchy a5 follows

e Lewed 1 = gy that reflect unsdiuited cuoted prices in sctive markess for identical imeestmens that the fund
s the ability 1 aocss Bt the fbasuement dibe;

s Leweld 2 - imputs other than quoted prices that ane significant and observable for the @set or lishdlity cither
dinecily or indirectly, indhuding inpuns in markets that are not considensd to be acthe:

®  Leweld 3 = nputs that are sgnificent and unolhervablie.

IFputs are usest in applying the wakous valustion technicues and brosdly refer to the avumptions thet market paricipants
sk b ake valuation decisons, induding assumplions abaut risk, Inputs may inchade price infarmation, specific and brosd
credit dats, liquidity tiatisticd, and other fachard, A fnancal ins rumert™s level withio the fair value Mersrchy B based upon
the loweest level of ary inpud that is significant to the fair value ressunement. However, the detenrination of wha
cormtitutes “obiervable” recuires sigrificant udgment by the immestment Manager. The imestment Mansger considers
obdavable data to be marke! dats whech is readily pvailable, regularly distributed of vpdated, reliable and verifiable, not
propristary, and provided by independen sources that are actively involved in the relevant market, The categonization of a
fimarcial irsbrusrent within the Rierearchy i based upon the pricng trarperoncy of the instrumen and does rat peoessily
cofrespond Lo thi imvestmert Manager's peroitved sk of that irstrument,

Ipvastmeris whose values are based on the guoted market prices in active markets, and therefore classBind wathin Lewal 1,
would incduce activelly traded sities, oertain LLS. gowerrmant and sowersign obligetions, and cerlain ssie-backed
seciaities and collaleralired mortigage obligateons, The Imvesiment Manager would not adjust the quated price for sudh
instruments, even in Situations where the fund held a large position and 8 sale could reasacably irmpact the quated price.

Imepstmerts that trade in markets that are not corsidered fo be acthe, but are walued based on quoted market prices,
diealer quotations of altermatiee peicing sources supponed by observable inputs ane classified within Level 2, These include
imsestmen t-grace debt securities, short-term Emvestments and foreard foreian curency excharge contracts and may ako
include cortain assel-backed securities and collateralied mortgage obigations. As Level 2 investments include positions
that are mot traded bn active markets andfor are subject to transfer restrictions, waluations may be achsted to reflect
illiguidity andfor non-transferability, which are generally based on avadable market information

Irvestimems dassified within Level 3 Pave significent unobservable mputs, a5 they would frade infrequently, Level 3

instrumerds would include certain asset-backed securities and collateralized mortgoge cbBigations. As observable prices are
nat avillable Tor those sourities, the Fund would use valuation techrigues to derie The fair va lue,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

SURARLARY OF SIGNIRCANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES [tontinund)

Valuetion of imvedmenils fooatinued)
The inputs or methodology Lsed Tor valuing securities are not necessanlly an indication of the risk assodated with investing
in those seaurities,

The following table presents the firendal inst ruments carvied on the Statement of Assets and Liskelities by caption and by
level within the valuation hierarchy as of February 28, 3021, further damifications of the financlal Insiruments are
presented in the Portfolio of Imeestments. There: were ro transfers between leweds during the year.

ety 8t Fair Valus Fair Valuse st
Levell Loved 2 Leval B I abwruary 3, 2021
Fimed income 7] - s 62,720,701 [£37] - [ R TR
Forward Foregn Cumency
Enchivipe Cantrindi . 15, 066 - L6066
Tensl LS - ] 2734, 767 LD - LSO EL7IATET
Lishilitier 52 Fair Value Fair Value ot
Level 1 Lewll Loval § Fabruany 28, 2021

Farward Foregn Cwrency

Evchage Cormracts £ - 1] 08, 55 50 - LED 398,565
s
Total =] - =] 332,365 [ - 5D 396,565

Foreign Currendy Trantfetion

Aszets and Kabilities held in currendies obher than United States Dollar {"US8° or the *Functional Cumency® | are franslated
to the Furctional Currendy #1 the rage of Hﬂ"h‘# prmiliu; at the financial staternent date Income and Expenies are
transkated at the rate of exchange previling at the date on whidh the income or expense is inournedl. Realiced and
wr eilived gaind #nd Bates sriting on forsign oufency iriniactiond sne induded in the Statement of Operations in the
jperind in which they ooowr.

The Furd does not inolate that portion of the rewlts of operations resulting from changes in foreign exchange rates on
imestmun s from the: fliuctuations arising from changes in market prices of securities beld. Such fluchations ane indluded
with thie et realized and wuorealized gain or loss from imestments

Tncome Tekes

Urier the curtent faws of the Cayman slands, there ane ror incomes, withholding, capitsl gains or other taxes pegable by
the Furd, i certain jurisdictions ather than the Caymen [Slands, foreign tames may be withhald 8 souroe on dividonds and
interest receinsd by the Furd. Capital gaies derived by the fund in such juriscictions generally will be exempt from foreign
inceare of wrilholding taces &t source. The Fund intends to conduct its affers sudh tht i will fot Be dubject 10ancome 1ax
in @y jurisdiction. As o nesult, no provision for income tases has been made in the finarcial statements. Unitholders may
e tamed o ther proportionste share of the Pund™s Lax Basi incorre based on their indhvidusl circumstance.

The Fund follaws the suthor tive guidance an sccourting for and disdosure of uncertsinty in fax positions. [Financisl
Ascoupiing Standards Board ["FASE") - Accounting Standards Codification 7400, whesh reguires the Marager 1o detenrane
whether & tax podition of the Furd it more Biely thin rot (o be sustamed upon examination by the applicable taxing
sutherity, nclucing resslution of any related appeals or Btigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position,
For tax poditions mesting the more [Beby than not theeshold, the tax bonefit recogniced in the firendsl statemerts is
rechuced by the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent Belibood of being realized upon wltimate sef themen
with the relevart taxing authority. The Manager has determired that there i3 mirimsl of no effect on the finarcial
staternents being under this authorinatiee guidence,

Forward Foreign Currency Exchange Contracts
Thee Fund may enter into forwird forsgn curfendy exchange contracts bo bedge aghires foreign currensy exdhange rate
risks on all or a portion of non-USD denomirated imvestments of for efficient portfolio maragement purposes. When
enbering nto & forword fonegn currersy exchange corract, the fund agrees o neceive o deliver 3 fived quantity of
forsign cuffency for an agreed-upon price on an agreed Tuture date, These contracts are valued daily, and the Fund's net
euity Eherein, representing unrealied appreciation {deprecistion] on the comracs o messored by the difference
between the foreand Torsign currency exchange rates at the dates of entry into the contracts and the forward rates atthe
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

SURMNMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continucd)

Forwerd Foreign Curmemoy Exchange Comtracts |comliog e
reporting date, it induded in the Statement of Assets snd Liabilities. Realinsd and unrealiced gains and losses ane inducded
in the Statemert of Operations

These imstruments imeotve market risk, oredit risk, or both kinds of risks, in exces of the amount ecogrized In the
Statemert of Atset and Lishilities. Ritks arie froem the postible inability of counterpertiet to mest the terms of their
cortracts and from movement in currency and secunities values and Imerest rates. 0 addition to the Gas level hedging,
the Fund had realized loss of USD 5051 on 12 forsand foreign ourrency eachange contracts during the year with an
average notional of USD 62,611 and an average term 1o maturity of 9 days, The Furd had nes realized gain of LSD 217,223
on 43 forward foreign ourrency exchange contracts held at the 1#Y Mordhly Distribution Oass Hedged level durdng the year
with an average notioral of LSO 1,945,465 ard an average ferm 1o maturity of 34 days. The Fund also had realized gain of
U0 1,281,330 on 39 forward foreign currency exchange contracts held a2 the JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Hedged
level during thee year with an average notioral of USD 33,852 835 and an average torm to maturity of 32 days,

Wihile: all or substantialy all of the assets of the Fund may be held in LS Collars, it s imerded for the Furd to enter into
hedging arrangements for the berefid of 10Y Monthly Distibation Class Units and [PY Semi-Arnua] Distribution Class Units,
whath are denominated in Yen Those arrangemerts will be to hedge against adwerse mowemonts of the ourrency of
denomination of the imestments in the Series Trust relative to Yeno Any profits, gaind, losses, costs, income and
maparditure associated with such hedging arrangemaents will be borne by each daws,

For the year ended February 28, 2021, the noticnal esposure on the JFY Monthly Distribwton Qass Undts and JPY Semi-
Anral Distribution Class Units forward ourmency exchange contracts approdmated the sverage net aswets for each dlass
being nat long JPY ang short LAD. Open contracts at yesr end ane disclosed in tha Fortfolio of Bmesiments,

Cask e Farergn Currenty
Cashand foreign ourrency comprises all ounmency held with Srowen Srother: Hamriman & Co., and owernight and other short
term placerments with other finandal irtitutions.

The ret agsets of the Fund e diided into 1PY Manthly Distribution Class Units, 1PY Sami-Arnusl Distribution (lass Unite,
50 Monihly Cidribution Clevs Units and US0 Semi-Anmual Distribution Claws Units. The Units are derominated in Unfied
Stedes Dollar and Japenese Yen. JPY Monthly Distibution (Qass Ueits, JPY SesmiAnnuel Distribution Oass Uinits, USD
Mot by Cistribution Class Units and W50 Semi-Annual Sistribution Cas Urits are aailable 1o an digible Evestor who is
any perion, covporation of entity which is nat {§) a citizen of resident of the LS, o partreribip ofganined or exdsting in the
U5, of any corporation, trust of other emity ofgariced under the laws of or eaisting in the US; (] person or entity resident
or cormidbed in the Cayman lslands (exduding any ohjedt of a charitable trust or powes’ or an exempted or non-resident
Cayrran Klands compary]: fiii] unable 1o subseribe fior or Rold Units withouwl vislating applicable lies, or (F¢] 8 custodasn,
nomines, or trustee for any person, conporation or entity described in (i} to {iii} abowe.

The $Manager may determine 1o istue one o more cleaes of Units of the Fond withou pror natioe o of written consent of
the Uit halders.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

LIS [comtinued)

All of the net assets attribatable to JPY Monthly Distribution Class Unins, [PY Semi-anrual Distribution Class Urits Class,
USD Manthly Destribution Class Units ardd USD Semi-Annual Distr bution Class Units, ane held by two Unitholders,

1P Barthily I Saimbfindisl USD Marthly USD S |- Al

Dirtrbution Clme  Dlatribution flase  Bltribution Clazs  Distrbatlon Clace Tl Fund

Balance & Febraary 19, 2000 Ush BRB04  USD SR EI0SE2  USO RSI70E usD BOTETIS  WSD RATABAD
Subser gt ion s duning the year a5, 48 199,282 313557 3493 555 5524465
Rdamptiong cheing the poi (2.3%5,869) 13.645.856) (645, 455) (2LTH6912) (28,458,173}
Custributiore (63, T30} {300.078) (TEATE) (303,680 (B35, 880)
et dimraann |nid nEset | reiuRing

from operslicns [4,521) (352515} (2453 [MTALTY L159.206)
et Aot ot Fibeuary 38, J001 LD 4802070 USD 34040815  LED 3952075 . wsD LB.TEEFE- LD ET.055435
Boam bt o Lindls v i o

Februmry 28, 2020 TLBI8 A9, 248 PLFR LR 4 5,001
Uit mmed during the yesr L1 108 JHL50E ik H SOT.616
Lt i i il urieg the vl [ 26 E55 (X286} 1“.52“ [2. 089 ;1:9:.&&&&
Humber of Lnits © isue o

Februmry 28, 2021 5,378 372108 .05 LBTE 149 LERE.570
et At Vialuw par Linit o2

Fehruary 28, 2021 1] L8 LT ] SLED LSO W usD 15

Subseriptions for Umits

IP¥ Manthly Distribution Class Urits and JPY Semi-hnnual Distribution Class Units were first isved 0 an iritial iswe price
of JPY 10000 per Unit. The mirémum irfial subscription for J0Y Monthly Distribution Clast Units and 10Y Semi-anrival
Distribution Class Urits per subscriber is § Unit or mace, and in multiples of 1Units thereafer.

A0 Monthly Sistribution Class Units and USS Semi-annual Distribution Clazs Units wene first issued at an iniftial issue price
of USD 10.00 per Urit. The mirimam initisl subacription for USD Marthly Distribution Clase Uil snd USD Semi-Snru sl
Bistribution Class Units per subscriber i 10 Urits or more, and in muliples of 1 Unit thereafter,

The Marager may wane of change the minimem nitial ard additional subseription amounts set forth above i its sole
diseretion froem time 1o time

Linit Redemplion

Thir Fund recognines redemplions in accordarse with the suthoritative guidance on distinguishing Beblities from ecuity.
Redernpiions, whether expressed a3 United Ststes Dollar, panese Yen of Units, are recognioed a3 Esbilities when each of
the Japanese Yen ard United Siates Dollar Unil amourts reguested in the redemption notice becomes fioes, which
gererdlly may oecur either ot the Sime of the remeipt of the notice, o on the lait day of & fiscal year, depending on the
natisre of the feuest. As B result, redemptions paid alter the end of the pear, but bied upan year end et a5sets are
reflected as redemptaons payable at Felbrunry 28, 2021, There were USD 158,539 for United States Dollar Units and LSD
1,350,747 for Japanese Yer Units of redemplions payabli 35 a2 February 28, 2021 inchuded a3 Payable for Units redesired
in the Statemert of Assets ard LishiRties.

Regurchesé af Units
Urits ey be repurchased o the option of Unitholders on sach Valustion Day, or sudh other day of days as the Manages
miry frowm tiene o time deter mine in respect of the Series Toust ("Repurchase Gay™).

Uritholders wishing to have Units repurchased must send 2 complebed Repurchase Notice to the Cistributors io 85 1o be
received by the Distributars mo later then 300 pom. [Tolono firse) on the rebevant Repurchase Day, The DEbabuiors will
send the complieted Repurchase Notices 1o the Sub-Adminisirator by no kter than E-00 pon. | Tokyo time) on the relevan
Repurdhase Doy of by such other tiere 84 the Sub-Administralor may in Sny particols cate determine

15 tihe releeant Repurdhade Notioe it not received by the Sub-Administrator by the relevart time, the Repurchane Modice will
be beld over wntil the pext iollowing Repurchase Day after the Repurchase Notkce & received ard Urits will then be
redemed ot the releant repurchsse price applicslde on that Repuedhase Doy,

& Repunchiie Notice, once ghaen, B infesocable.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

LIS |comtinued)

Compulsory Redempdion

Irvthe everd that the Trustes of the Manager shall detenmine that ary Units of any dass of a Series Trust ane bang held by
of for the benefit of @ person who is not an Eligible imvestor for such Serles Trust or that such holding would cavso the
Truet or the Sevies Truit (o be recuined to register, be subject b taw o vicdate the laws of any jurisdiction, or i the Trustee
or the Manager has reason to doubt the kegitimacy of the source of monies wied 10 fund the ubsorigtion or purchase of
such Units, or for whatever reazon {which may not be disdoted by the Tnostes or the Manager to Unitholders) that the
Truster or the Manager considers appropeiate at its absolute discrotion hinsng regard o the interests of the Unitholders of
the: relevart Class or the Uritholders of the Series Trust as 2 whole, then the Manager, after cormultation with the Trustes,
mary direct she holder thereod 1o sell such Urits within 10 days and prosdde 1o the Trustes arg the Manager evidenge of
such sale, failing which the Merager may nedesm such Linis,

Temination of the Furnd
Upon termination, the Marager 48 realize all the assets of the Fung, and after paying out or retaining adequate provision
for all liabilitics properly peyable and retaining provision for the costs of the termiration, the Trustes shall distribute the
proceeds of that resliration to the Unitholders proportionately 1o their redpectve irterests in the Fund m of the date of
termination of the Fund.

Dstribations to Unitholders

The Manager miay, from time bo time, in 14 sole discretion, declene distributions from September 2017 Distribution will be
dieclared on sach Business Day immediately prioe to the Ex-Distribition Cate for 18Y and LSO Digtribution Class Units or
such other date o dates a3 the Menager may from time 1o Sme determine in espect of the Sedes Trost | "Distribution
Record Date”) and caloulated on the fifieenth (15th) day of each month for Morthly Cistribution Class Units and the
fiftmertth [15th) day of March and September of esth year for Sami-Annual Distibution Qlass Units [ such dey i not a
Basiness Day, then on the following Susiness Cay), or such other date or dates in each month as the Manager may from
tirme to time determine in respect of the Series Trest ("Ex-Distribution Date”]. Distribution Period is a pericd commencing
from the calencar day following the preceding Distribution Record Cote and ending on and induding the Distribution

Recond Date. The distributions will be pald on the rdevart Distribution Payment Bate, provided that such amourt (i€ any}
dedared with respect to the relewant (ass of Units in respect of the applicable Cistribution Fesiod shall only be paid out of
the Seres Trust’s net income, realized and unrealized capdtal galms and any cistributable funds of the Series Trust
attributable to such Cless of Units &5 determined by the Manager.

The tedaration of divtibulion to Unitholders reduwces the Class Level Net Adset Vabue per Unit without any omesponding
charge in the rumber of (lass Level Urits por Unitholder, This results in a Unitholder's overall imeestment in the Fund
being reduced. in addition, ary distributions during a period which are in exoess of the fund’s net noease in net assets
resulting from operateons remlts in a portion of the distribation being return of capital,

The smaund of distributions, if sy, will be determined by the Manager in i role diseretion, snd no repredentation or
guarantes s mace that a distribution will be made in respect of each or any Cistribution Period,

Copilakzaiion

The Mot Asiet Value per Urit it caloulated for each Desling Day imach business day, coimmending on March 30, 20017, or
such other day or days a8 the Manager may from firme to time determing in respect of the Fund siso 8 {"Valustion Day™), by
divicing the difference in vebue between the Fund's assets and Babilities (induding scorued fees and expenzes of the Fund)
by b muarbresr of U mits sulstanding.

The Trust Deed stipulates that the ber of Urdts 10 be ssued in the fund shall be vnlimiied as the Marager shall
determing and shall be without par value.

CHERAATIVE DINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Ascounting Starderd Codification (ASC) 815-10-50 requires disclosures aboul Sefivetive instruirents and hedgng activities.
Inrisauibres that the Fund disclose: a] how and why an entity uses deriatbae nstnurents, b) how derivathee instruments and
related hedged items are accounted for and ¢ how defivative instrument s and neloted bedged temd alfect an entity's
finarcial position, finarciel performance ang cash flows,

Thie Fund trarsacts fonasrd derfatiie msfruments primanly for hedging puiposes with each instrument®s primary risk

exposure being foceign exchange vk, The forward foceign ourtenty exchange comrects held by the Fund do not cualify o4
hedge for accounting purposes under the requirements of ASC 815, The fair valee of these dervative instruments is
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

DERMATIVE FINANCAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)

inclhuded in the Statement of Assets and LisblRties with changes in fair vabkue reflected a5 realized gainsflosses) or net
change in unreakred appreciation/{gepreciation)] on dervatives within the Statement of Operatians [Note 2).

The Fund may erler inlo &n intermational Swaps and Derivatie Asseoateon, Inc. Master Ajgresment {71500 Masier
Agrenrment”] with its counterparties in order to mitigate counterparty risk. The IS0A Master Agreement Is Sypically
negatiated by the Fund and its counterparties, contaming the bidateral tenrs and conditions Tor all subseguent dervatine
transactions, The I500 Masier Agreement allows fos the retting of all amounts owed to or due from courenparty into a
sighe net payment il a erecit evert or defaull should eeewr,

At February 28, 2021 the Furd had entered into the following derivative assets by counterparty ret of amaunts sailible
fiar offuet Lincler & Master Netting Agresmrent [MRA") snd net of sy collateral received by the Fund:

Durheatiow furets Dbt Mon-carh =411 Mk Amount of
HM Eﬁ_ﬂ‘lﬁlm Ooemllwhie for Offset Colfatersl Recshad Collstersl Recehad Derhvathos S rets”
Brownbrothers Harman & G0, WD b [HETE -0 -0 62
ek 75 8354 5.364) . - -
Tatsl Um  emeuss (ss7s)Uso s U5 =

it Febroary 28, 2021 the Fund had entered imo the following derfvatiee labilities by counterparty miet of amaounts swailable
for offset under a MAA and ret of 2ry collateral pledged by the Fund

Dareative Dprhatives Men-cach Cath Mat Amount of
Counterparty Lipbilains ivemitabds for Offset Collotersd Mladged Collvteral Pladged Darkative
Subjen to 8 MAA Linbiliins
Brerw s Bochars s an & Co LE ] 150 [IUED — LD — LD =
Cribank PR 38,555 5, 354) - - 330, 191
Torsd Wl EEUSD Mil} -'-_!EE -'-I!.IJ 350,191

L PRt SASLE it b U FLot St Peomsvibia e abie from Bhe coUSSeTBa Ty 1 [h fvmnl oF Aufbl

At February 28, 2021 the Furd had entered into the following deriatives:

Friet Derhatie: L D it i
Bzt Statamant Statumant
Mot Acesunted for st of Assets and of fazats and
Hedging bnytram sngs Liabilgias Losation Fair Value Lighlgtisr Locstion Fair Valua
Forwand fangign durrency  Linngdlioed appregiaion Wnreali; od daprecalicn
eschanpe contracts onforeard forign onforward foresgn
| Crraney Rk ] LuFransy dathange [ 16,066 owrency axchangs LU} w] {398 SEL)
Eor Pt -add i

The effect of derivative instruments on the Staterunt of Operations for the year ended Februany 28, 2001-

Chinnge in Urrsalined

Locatian of Reslined Approdistion or
Digribrativer Mot ccounted Gavin or [Leas) aln or {Lear) {Beprasiation} an
humﬂmm-m o ekt L s DU ] Darhetivas

Hef renfiged ganon forward loregn
Farward foreign asrmency OEvEnCy Eochangl ceMran s
ienchange conbracts b i unraelited daprpoatisn o o wird
{Curnpngy Righ | Borgign currengy achange coniracy LL-6 LASRERT LED L 3ERALD)

MANAGEMENT NEES

Thie Marager is entitled 1o receive cut of the assets of the Senies Trust a managemen fee of 3 113l up 1o 0.68 per apnum
{0L058 per anrum in respect of fee for the Marager, 0.25% per annum of the Net Asset Vadue up 1o USD 200 million and
L22% per annuir of the Met Asset Value oo USD 300 million in respect of Tee for the investment Marager, and 0.40% per
annuen of the Net Asset Value up 10 LSO 200 millicn and 0.35% per anrum of the Ne Asse? Value geer LS &30 million in
respect of fen fof the Sube-irvest ment Manager) of the Net Asset Velue scoued on, and caloulated as at, eadh Valustion
Day angd payable monthly In armears. in aggition, the Manager is also entitled 10 be reimbursed out of the asuems of the
Series Teust for any experises incumred by i in the proper performance of i powers and dutes 35 permitied under the
Master Trust Deed. Curing the year ended February 28, 2021, the Manager eamned fees of USD 512,745, of which USQ
33,573 s still outsiancing a3 of February 28, 2021,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

FAANAGEMENT FEES [continued)

The Manager will pay the fees of the imvestmert Marager ot of Bs foes, The Imvestment Manager will be resporsibde for
paying the fees of the Sub-imaestment Manager and any of the Irvestment Manages's delegates or olher parties appoimed
lbey £ imyestmerd Manager to perform its functions in respect of the Series Tus,

CUSTODAN AND SUIB-ADRIMISTRATOR'S FEES

The fund has a custody and accounting agreemart with Brown Brothers Haniman & Co. (the “Custodian™ and “Sub-
Administrator” ) for which the Cistodian receives a fee caloulated and paid monthly based on total svsets and trardaction
whume

The Custodian and Sub-Administrator s entithed 1o recobe out of the assets of the Seres Trust an adminkiration foe
{inchuding transfer agerd fioe) caloulated based on the et Asset Value as at cadh Valuation Day at the following anrual
rate

- Q0P ¥ up to fand including] LS 250 million;

- DLDE¥ up to (and including] LSD SO0 million;

- L0 ower LS5 SO0 million,

Such administration fee i+ payable monthly in arrears, and subgect 1o the mirimem annual fee of USD 0,000, The Sub.
Administrator i alio entitled toreoeine out of the assets of the Series Trust fees for cuntency adminisirstion and execution
services at the rate of 0.05% per annum of the Net Asset Valie of the redevam Unit @ass, subject to the minimum anrual
fee of USE 50,000, In addition, the Custodian and Sub-Adminiztrator i alio entitled o receie customary safekeeping fees
and transaction charges. All cut-of pocket expenses of the Custodian and Sub-Administrator shall also be borne by the
Seriet Trust During the year snded Febousary 28, 2021, the Custodian esrned fee of LSO X481, of which USD 14,954 i
still cartstanding as of February 38, 2021,

TRUSTEE FEES

The Trustes b entisled 10 receive ot of the amets of the Serles Trust a combined foe at the rate of LO15% per anrum of
the ket Asted Valuve accroed on, and calculated 2% at each Vahuation Day and payable quarterdy in amears, swbject to @
minimum annual fer of USD 15,000, Dusing the year ended February 28, 2021, the Trustee carned fees of USD 15,002, of
whiich L5359 533 is still outstanding as of February 28, 2021,

AGENT CONIPARNYTS FEES

The Agent Company i entitbed 10 neosioe out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee 3t the rste of 0.02% per annum of the
Net Asset Value acorued on, and calcudated as at, each Valkation Doy and payable cuarterly in smears, During the yrar
ended February 28, X121, the Agent ecamed fees of USD 15081, of which USD 2054 & still oulstanding as of February 28,
2021

Thi Distributon ane entitled to receive cut of the stsets of the Seres Trust & fee ot the rate of 0.60% per anowm of the ke
Assel Value accrued an, and caleulsted as ol each Valustion Dy and payable quarterly in arrears. During the yesr ended
February 28, 221, the Distributons earned fees of USD 452 426, of which USD 62,423 i still outsdanding o4 of February 28,
2021

OTHER FEES AND EXPENSES

Thi: costs and expanies in connection with the establishment of the Series Trust and the offering of the Units, 1ogeiher
with the establithment of the Tnat, induding the costs and esperdes of praparding and printing any prodpecius or
explanatory brochures required, were estirated g Burch to amount fo spproximately USD 140,000, Sudh costs and
eapernes will be amortined within the first fiee (5] finencial years of the Series Trust unless the Trostee dedides that some
wther method shell be applied, The Administrator recsives USD 1500 per anrum Tor FATCA /| CRS complianci serdos.

100/207



11.

EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

FINAMCLAL REE MANAGEMENT

The Fund's actiities papose it to a warinty of fanandal risks: market risk [induding price risk, interest rate risk, and ourrency
risk), eredit risk ang liguidity sk,

Marked Higk
Al rvestiments present a risk of loss of capizal, The Imvestment Manager moderates this risk through a carefiul selection of
securities and other firendial instruments.

Thee Furd’s imestment management prooess i described @n dote 1. The primary determirant of the Fund's ability 1o meet
its objectcae of mid 1o long tenm capital appreciation while eamning ircoma Is dependent on the perormarce of the
irmmestmaent in the residential and commsrcial mortgagebacked seourities.

The walues of the Fund’s imvestments ane affected by a number of factors, indheding but not limited to, dhanges in the wider
economy, finandal ard cumercy markets, foreign currency exchange rates, Inferest rte movements and orecit ratings of
debt istuers. The Fund enters into forward contracts which o vanying degrees represent a market risk in exoess of the
amaunt refleched on the Fund's Statement of Adsets and Lishilitie. The notions amount of the contract FEprEdents ihe
extent of the fund’s participation in these finandial imstruments. Market risks associated with such contracts arise due to
the persiblle manernents in foreign aurenty Bnchin ge fatis underlying theie st ruaments,

Orther market snd oredit riske indude the posibility that there may be an illiquid merket for the contracts, that the dhange
in thie value of the coMract may not directly corredate with charges in the value of the undeslying currendes or that the
counterparty b o forwand contract defaulis on its cbligation to perform under the terms of the contract. The Fund's
eaposune to loss due to courterpanty non- parformance on open fuiures, forwards, veap and optiens cortracts s limited 1o
the urrealized appeecistion irherent in such financial inttrumersts which are recogrized in the SSaternent of Assets and
Liaklities.

s el -Backed £ curilitd ifvestmenl sk

Aspet-backed securities imestrnent have the risk thet bommowers may defacht on the obligations thet underlie the st
backed security and that, during periods of falling imerest rat es, dnel-backed secuities may be caled or prepaid, which
iy result in the Serie Trust hoding to reinvest procesdd in other irvestments ot a loweer interest rate, ard the risk that
the impainrent of the value of the collateral undadying 8 seourity in which the Series Trust irmests [due, Tor exerple, to
nor-payrment of loans] will result in @ recuction in the value of the seourity.

Concentralion risk

The Sefied Trust imists substartially i bondd Bseed by WS agencied in aoiondaroe with ity princips] imaesbrent
strategies, Becavie tuch wecurities are Bsued by a limited number of govemment agendies, any acfual or poterdisl
disruption to thote sgencied could present & sk to the Sedes Trost, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mas, which are other
powmmment -sponsored issuers of morgage-back securities simillar to thowe guaranteed by Ginnic Mae, suffered sudh a
digruption in the mofigage oridis of 2007 - 7008 and were placed under federal conderestorship 22 that time Ganmnie Mae
securities, unlike those of Facnie Mae and Freddie Mac, are backed bey the foll faith and oedit of the US. government and
sre subject 1o the rishs of US povErnment apcuritien. Similar 1o other isuen, ﬂ'III'F!'I.&lhE financal condition or dredn
rating of the UA government may cause the value of the Sories Trest's exposure 1o UUS agencies seourities (o dedine.

Mo rigage -bocked securities rigk

Morigage-backed securities represent imterests in “pools” of mortgages and sne subject to credit, inteness rate,
prepaymient and sdension ek, Morigage-backed wecurities react differently to changes ininfenest rate than other bonds
and the prices of mortgage-backed secunities may neflect adverse economic and market conditions. Small movemernts in
inteest rates [both increases snd decreases] maoy quickly snd signilicanly redeoe the velue of oerlain mon e bicked
wecuditien. Default of bankruptoy of & counterparty to 8 fo-be-announced tremisction would expote the Seris Trost 16
peossilde o,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

FINAMCLAL REE MANAGEMENT [rontinued)

Mortgage-reloeted and Other Assel-Bocked Securitres risk

The Fund may imeest in mongage-related and other asset-backed securities that diectly or indirecily represent a
participation in, or ane secured by and payable from, loars on real property, Mortgzge-related seouities ane oreated from
pock of residential or commaercial morgage loar, inchading mortgage losrs mrade by tavings ard loan institutions,
morigage bankers, commercial banks and others. These securitins provide a monthly payment which consists of bath
interest and principal, interest may be determired by fied or adjustable retes. The rate of prepaymonts on underbying
morigages will affect the price and volatility of a morgage-related seaurity, and may hawe the offect of shoriening or
waending the effective duration of the seourity relative 10 what was anticipated at the time of purchese. The fimely
payment of prindpal and imeres of cerain mortgage-related seourisies s guaranteed with the full faith ard credit of the
US Gowemment, Pool created and guaanteed by nong al i including  govennment < ponsoned
corporations, may be supported by vanious forms of insurance or guarantees, but there can be ro asserance that privaie
inturers o guarantors can meet their cbligations urder the insurance polides or guarariee arrangemonts. Many of the
risks of irvesting in mortgagerelated securities secured by commencial mortgage loans reflect the effects of local ang
other economic conditioms on real estate markets, the ability of terants to make lease pagments, and the ability of a
property to athract and netain tenants.

Credit Hitk

Cregit risk represents the potential loss that the Fund would inour if the counterparties or issuers of debt seounities falled
tor perform pursuant 1o the terms of their obligations to the Furd. For excharge-traded ontescty, the exchangs acts a3 the
counterparty to specific transaciions mnd, therefore, besrs the sk of defvery to ard from coumerparties of specific
posititns, The Funds managernent does nat consider that onedit rivk related fo open derfvatine contracts will hinee material
atverse effect on the firarcial condition of the fund

Altheugh the Marager moritons the Custadian snd believes it 19 be an appropriate custadian, thees is no guarentes thet
this or ary custodian that the Fund may wie Froen time to time, will not become mnwobent, which could lesd to Bsses for
the Fuid

While batih the LS, Bankrugtey Code and the Securities investor Protection A1 of 1970 seek to protect customer propeny
in the eeerd of & failure, inschency or Bquidation of &n inttitution, theve i2 no cortainty that, i the svent of a fadure of 2n
institution that has custody of Furd assets, the Fund would not inour losses dus 1o it issets being urdnsilsbie for 8 period
of time, ultimately less than full recovery of its assets, or both. Becawse all of the Fund's cash is in custody with a singhe
irstftution, sush lossed could be sgrificant and could matefially impair the ability of the Furd to schieve its iretment
objective. The Fund is sbject 1o credit rish 1o the extent that this imstitution may be unable to fulfill &1 obligations to repay
DTS cwed.

Liguaiafily fisk
Irmeestors should be aware that the value of Units might fall a5 well as rise. investment in the Fund invobees a degree of risk;
these can be no dsburance that the Fund's irmvestenent objective will be sdhieved.

The Furd i'!-Ewr.’Qﬁbﬂ !Dﬂlihl‘!p}fﬂﬂuﬂi‘l‘!{ﬁihﬂ mlﬁmtm that the Fund hes afSsen resounce to
meet the presemt and foreseeabde meeds of its business operations and, if necessary, the Bouidity to fund repurchases and

achiewe a marked position appropriately reflecting o smaller capital base. This position is monitored continually by
N Sgenent to endure hat the Fund has the sbility 160 meed 23 oldigations.

Currevty fisk

Thir Fund halds monetary and ron-monetany pssets and inows monetary and non-moretery liabdties denomnated in
ourrenties other than U0, the functions] Currendy. fis therefere expaded fo cumnency risk, & the value of the msets and
liabilities cenominated in other cummencies {“ron-USDT) will fuctuate due to dhanges in exchange rates. The Fund may
erher into currercy bedging transactions from time to fime in order ta limit it sogposure to curency rise.

Thieeifeetrrent marnsger monitor the Furd's currency xposune on 3 daily basis,

vt Bk

During the year, the COVIC-19 outbresk was cdeclared a pandemic by the Wordd Meakh Oganization. The stuation is
dyramiz with voricus cities and countries around the world responding in different ways to sddres the outbreak. The
ropid dewelopment and fhudity of this sifustion prechudes any prediction a3 its oltimate impad, which mey have a
oorinued adverse impact on econmic snd marked conditins ard trigger 8 periced of gobal ecoramic dsewdonn.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

FINAMCLAL REE MANAGEMENT [rontinued)

The Truster and Irenstment Manager are monitoding developments relating to COVIDAS and ane coovdinating their
operational response based on existing business continuity plam and on guidance from global health crgarerations,
relevant governmarts, and general pandermic response best practices,

COMMTIAENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the normal course of business, the Trustee on behalf of the fund may erter info contracts that contain a varkety of
rtepresentations and warranties ard which provide general indemnifications. The general inderrnifications apply not onky
to the extent such representations and warramies are untrue but also may cover third parties such as the Fupd's
Administrator, Auditor or ¥vestment Manager for chims related to the serdoss peformed for the Fund, The Trustes's
masimum exposure Lnder ary such anargements s urlnown, a5 exposure only arises 1o the exdent future daims that
hawe not yet ooourred are made against the Trustee. M er, based on ience, the Trusten oxpects the risk of koss to
b remate.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOURMCEMENTS

O Aogusd 28, 2018, the FASE Hduid an Actounting Standards Update, ASU 2018-13, Fair Value Measurement {Topic 8£20):
isclosure Framework-Changes to the Disclosure Aeguinements for Fair Value Measurement {~A500 20 18-13°)L ASU 2018-13
imandified the disdosure objective paragrephs of ASC B2D to eliminate {1) “at a mirimum” from the phrase “sn entity shall
dizchose at 3 minimum” and {2} other Smilar "open ended” disclosire requirements to promote the appropriat e esercise of
disoretion by entities, ASU 2018-13 al=o eliminstes and mocdifies other reguiremnents snder ASC B20. The update is efective
for all entities for fiscal years, and interim periods wishin those fiscal years, beginning after Decmber 15, K119, Early
mpplication i permitted.

At this time, it i$ not antidpated that these dchanges will hawve an impact on the finandal statemen .
SLAES EOUIEMT EVENTS

Management perfonmed a subteguent essnty review up 1o July 6, X021 which it the date the Snancial statements were
mvailable 1o be issued.

Effective March 1, 2021 through July & 30210, thene wene subscriptions of LSD 342 in respect of JFY Montbly Disteibution
Cams and there were dubbcriptiond of USD 183 854 in respect of Y Semi-Annual Oistribution Oass, there were
subsoriptions of US0 102089 in respect of USD Monthly Cistibution Cass, thers were subscriptions of USD 29961 in
respect of US0 Semi-Annual Cistribution Class.

Effective March 1, 2021 through July 6 X121, there were edemptions of USO 338415 in respect of IPY Monthly
Cigtribmition Cless and there wene redemptions of USD 2 582 461 in redpect of JPY Seri-hnnus] Distribution Class, there
wene redemption of USD 273,50 in respect of USD Monthly Distribution Class, thers were redemptions of US0 2,296 17%
in respect of USD Semi-Anrual Distribution Class.

There were distfibutions of USD R7452 in respect of JBY Mombly DiEribotion Oads, Thene were distributions of USD
13,055 in rewpect of JFF Serni-Armual Gistribution Class, There were distributions of USD 30,77 in respect of WSO
et bily D tribation Class, There wer e cittribations of USD 111,698 in respect of USD Sermi-Arnue] Distribution Class,

There are no other sdgrificant events to report &3 they relate todhe fund.

103/207



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 29
2020 29
83,941,250 85,595,090 9,465,105
1,105,253 122,219
1,880 208
214,797 23,752
1,019,797 112,769
87,936,817 9,724,053
989,231 109,389
126,955 14,039
81,530 9,016
47,530 5,256
45,595 5,042
25,333 2,801
3,847 425
2,770 306
464 51
441 49
12,886 1,425
26,395 2,919
1,362,977 150,718
86,573,840 9,573,335
83,329,072 9,214,529
3,244,768 358,806
86,573,840 9,573,335
740,002,439
74,915 9,878
4,110,797,927
409,243 10,045
2,527,093
242,969 10.40 1,150
39,075,715
3,642,894 10.73 1,187
110.58
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2020 29

3,195,763 353,387
3,195,763 353,387
512,288 56,649
452,019 49,984
99,038 10,952
63,042 6,971
15,067 1,666
15,043 1,663
10,028 1,109
3,270 362
74,587 8,248
1,244,382 137,604
1,951,381 215,784
266,416 29,460
(1,055,760) (116,746)
(789,344) (87,286)
3,536,505 391,067
1,209,992 133,801
4,746,497 524,868
3,957,153 437,582
5,908,534 653,366

110.58
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2020 29
1,951,381 215,784
(789,344) (87,286)
4,746,497 524,868
5,908,534 653,366
(96,126) (10,630)
(309,101) (34,180)
(57,938) (6,407)
(263,722) (29,162)
(726,887) (80,379)
11,138 992,671 109,770
8,077 720,567 79,680
61,310 626,045 69,228
2,018,963 21,054,737 2,328,233
34,347 (3,037,545) (335,892)
24,553 (2,222,448) (245,758)
98,361 (997,618) (110,317)
698,832 (7,220,086) (798,397)
9,916,323 1,096,547
15,097,970 1,669,534
71,475,870 7,903,802
86,573,840 9,573,335

110.58
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2020 29

2020 29
85,595,090 85,595,090
1,019,797 1,019,797
86,614,887 86,614,887
2020 29
12,886 12,886
12,886 12,886
FASB ASC 740

50
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42
175,497
40
879,116
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2019

2020

2019

2020

2020

28

29

28

29

29
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8,426,936 36,935,001 2,762,565 23,351,368 71,475,870
992,671 720,567 626,045 21,054,737 23,394,020
(3,037,545) (2,222,448) (997,618)  (7,220,086)  (13,477,697)
(96,126)  (309,101) (57,938) (263,722) (726,887)
574,514 2,986,563 194,039 2,153,418 5,908,534
6,860,450 38,110,582 2,527,093 39,075,715 86,573,840
98,124 425,719 280,020 2,322,763 3,126,626
11,138 8,077 61,310 2,018,963 2,099,488
(34,347) (24,553) (98,361) (698,832) (856,093)
74,915 409,243 242,969 3,642,894 4,370,021
91.58 93.12 10.40 10.73
10,000
10.00
10
2020 29
2020 29 126,955
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2020 29 MNA
MNA
@
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 10 10
Citibank PB 1,019,787 (12,886) 1,006,901
1,019,797 (12,886) 1,006,911
2020 29 MNA
MNA
(€]
Citibank PB 12,886 (12,886)
12,886 (12,886)
@
2020 29
1,019,797 (12,886)
2020 29
(1,054,826) 1,209,989
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0.68 0.03 0.25
0.22
0.40 0.35
2020 29
512,288 2020 29 45,595
0.07 2.5
0.06 2.5
0.05
60,000
0.05
50,000
2020 29 99,038 2020
29 47,530
0.015
15,000 2020
29 15,043 2020 29 3,847
0.02
2020 29 15,067
2020 29 2,770
0.60
2020 29 452,019
2020 29 81,530
10
140,000
FATCA/CRS 1,500
11

114/207



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2007 - 2008

115/207



12

1970

116/207

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



13
2020 26
2020 2020
1,690
2020 2020
745,021
662,193
23,250
CovID-19
2020 11
(

)

26

26

23,667

1,054,815

460,675

217,396

2019
( )COVID-19
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94,307

100,915

1,630,294

153,869

COVID-19
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

February 29, 2020

{Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)

AsaEs:

Irvpestmenils A securities, Bl vatae [cost of USD 3,941, 250) ush 8BS, 595,000
Lanh 1,105,253
Receivable for subscrinbion proceeds 1,580
It Eesl feceivabie 214,797
Unnpa sed agparecation oa lonwad lanegn carrency exchanie coalrscls 1,019 a7
Todal asaects BT 936517
Lizhilities:

Payabie for investments puschased A9, 231
Payabie for Uails redeemied 126,955
Sacraed datoutors fees B1.5300
Sacroed custodian s sub-sdminstrators fees 47 530
Agerued management lses 45585
Sacraed probessional Tees 25,333
Sacroed rustes fees JE47
Accrued agent company's fees 2.
Accraed registration Tees 464
Accraed transler agent Tees 441
Unsrpaised depcecinlan on lorwatd aregn currendy exdhange conlracls 12 586
Db enpenses 26,105
Todal liabilites 1362977

Net Assets Attributable fo Unitholders usn HES73,E40
Analysiz of Met Astets:
Pald Incapital ush B3 329072
Todal distributable earnings 3,244, T6H
Net Assets Attributable fo Unitholders usn 6,573,840
Mirt At Valoo pir Unit
{IPY Monthiy Distribation Class. IPY 780,002,439 & 74,915 Units outstanding) L SRR
{IFY Semi-Amnea | Dt Dutos Class JFY 4,110,797 927 + 409, 243 Units outstamdag) FY 10,045
_—
{USD Moty Distribution Class USD 2,527,093 + 242,969 Linits aoutstasding] 5D 1040
{USD SembAnnual Distrioution Class USD 39,075,715 + 3,642 594 Units outstanding) ush 10,73

The accompanying notes are an invegral part of these financial state ments.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended February 29, 2020
{Expressed in United States Dollar)
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IneRstmant Ineam:
interest
Tetal Investment lagams

Exparise:
Management Tees
Distrowtor's fees
Custodian and sub-adminstrator's fees
Prodesaonal fees
Agent company's fees
Triuntbee fees
Tranafer agent fees
Registration fees
Ohier Enpenses

Total Expenses

Met Investmant |Rcomeas

Realized and Unrealired Gaing/{Losses):
Rz ol gain) [ iosses)
Imseesirmends in secarites
Fareign currency transactions and Torward foreign cusrency exchange contracts
Het realized loses
Change inwnrealived appreciation[depr eciation]
Imeestrments in secarities
Fareign currency transactions and Torward foreign cusrency exchange contracts
Ket cheage in warealized sppreciation
Mt nealized a5 wirealized gains

Met ncrease innet adsets resulting from operations

[157+] 185 Ta3
3,195,763

512 288
452019
99,034
63,042
15,067
15,043
10,028
3270
74587
1,244,182

1,951,381

266416

{1,055, T60)
[¥£9,344)

1,536,505
1,209,592
4,746 497
3,957,153

ush 5,908,534

The accompanying notes are an invegral part of these financial state ments.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020
{Expressed in United States Dollar)

Ineridii [Decrenis] in Mt Asets ram:

Operations:

Kot invistmet iscomie usD 1951281
Kot riealiged \osses {TED 144)
Ket change inuncealised agaredation 4 Ta6 407
Ket incremse imnet assets resulting from operations 3908534

Distributions to Unithalders:

1P Moathly Dot tion Class (96, 1.26)
1Y Spmd-Annual Distribufion Class { B9 101}
USE Monthly Distriouton Cas [57 S38)
USESemi-Anniual Distribaton Chss [363,722)
Todal Distributions (726 867)
Capital Transactions:
LIt isdand
1PY Mesathly Distioation Class (11,138 Units) 292,671
I Spmi-Annual Distribution Class {B077 Uaits) 710567
USEr Monthly Distrioution s {61,310 Un'ts) 6206 045
USE SembAnnual Distribation Cass (2,008 963 Unigs) 21,054 737
Un'ts redeemied
IFY Moathly Disteinuton Class (34, 347 Units) {3.037,545)
1FY Semc-Anaual Distributes Cass {14,553 Units) (2221 448)
USDr Moenthly Distribution Cass {96,361 Units) {997 G1B)
USE Semi-Annual Bistribation Chss (G958 532 Unaits) 4 220 ABG)
Ket increase innet assets resulting from cip'tal transactons 916 323
Total lncreass n Nat Asseis 15,047 970
Mt Adseti;
Beg nining of year TLAT5E0
Endd ol year Wsh Bi5.573 840

The accompanying notes are an invegral part of these financial state ments.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

ORGAMNIZATION

Doubleline Total Return Fund (the “Fund”) ks a series tust of the Nikko AM Offshore Funds, an open-ended unit trust
established by a supplemental trust deed dated February 8, 2017 [the “Supplemental Trust Deed™), under the laws of the
Cayman Islands. Nikko AM Offshore Funds was established by a master trust deed dated October 15, 2012 (the “Master
Trust Deed”), under the laws of the Cayman Islands and is licensed with the Cayman Islands Monetary Authority pursuant
to section 4(1){a} of the Mutual Funds Law (2009 Revision). The Fund commenced operations on March 30, 2017,

The Fund's assets are managed on a day to day basis by Mikko AM Global Cayman Limited {the “Manager”). The Manaper
delegates imestment management duties to Nikko Asset Management o, Ltd., [the “Investment Manager”), The
Investment banager delegates investment management duties to Doubleline Capital L®, (the “Sub-Investment Manager”).
The admintstration of the Fund is delegated to Brown Brothers Hardiman & Co, [the “Custodian™ and “Sub-Administrator”),
a limited partnership organized under the laws of the State of New Yorik,

The investrment abjective of the Fund is to achieve a mid ta long term total return thraugh income and capital appreciation,
Under normal circumstances, the Series Trust shall invest ower 509 of its net assets in residential and commarcial
martgage-backed securities, sctively allocated between agency and non-agency Securities.

These investments may include morgage-backed securites of any maturity of type, including those guaranteed by, or
secured by collateral that is guaranteed by, the United States Government, its agencies, instrumentalies. or sponsored
corparations, and privately issued mortgage-backed securities rated at the time of purchase Aa3 or higher by Moody's ar
Adi- ar higher by S&P or of an equivalent rating by any other nationally recognized statistical rating erganization ["NRSRO")
that has been recognized by the LS. Securites and Exchange Commission or unrated securities that are determined by the
Investmant Manager or its delegates to be of comparable quality. These investmients alto intlude, among othars, U.S,
Government mortgage pass-through securities, collateralized momgage obligations, multiclass pass-through securities,
private martgage passthrough securities,

The Series Trust may also invest in short term investments, such as notes issved by US. Governmant agencies, and bonds,
debt securities and other fed income instruments issued by .S, Governmental or private-sector entities, or other asset-
backed obligations, collateralized loan obligations, and obligations of the WS Gowernment and its agencies,
instrurnentalitkes and spansored corporations.

The Series Trust may invest in bonds of any eredit quality, including thase that are at the tme af investment unrated or
rated B&+ or lower by S&F or Bal or lower by Moody's or of an equivalent rating by any other NRSRO, Bonds and finad
income instruments rated below Evestrent grade, or such instruments that are unrated and deterrined by the
Investment banager or its delegates to be of comparable quality, are high yield, high risk bonds, commaenly known as ‘junk
bands’. The Series Trust may invest up to a third of its net assets in junk bonds, bank lbans and assignrents that are either
rated below investment grade or are unrated but determined by the Investment Manager or its delegates to be of
comparable quality, and credit default swaps of companies in the high yield universe,

The Series Trust may (nvest a portion of its net assets in inverse floater securitees and interest-only and principal-only
securities.

Under the terms of the Supplemental Trust Deed and the Master Trust Deed, CIBC Bank and Trust Company [Cayman)
Limited (the “Trustee” and the “Administrator”) is named as Trustee of the Fund.

The Manager appointed Mitsubishi UF) Margan Stanley PB Securities Co., Ltd to act as Agent Company [the “Agent
Company”) and the Manager appointed Mitsubishi UF) Morgan Stanley P8 Securities Co., Ltd and SMEBC Trust Bank Ltd, to
act as Distributors (the “Distributors”) of Units in Japan.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Fund is an Investment Company that follows the accounting and reporting guidance in FASB Accounting Standards
Codification 948,

Use of Estimates

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
thee United States of America (U5 GAAPY). The preparation of financial staterments in accordance with .S, GAAP requires
the Fund's management to make estimates and assumptians that affect the reported amounts of assets and labilities and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results, includ ing the uktimate amount realized upon the sale of
fair valued investments, could differ fram thowe estimates and such differences may be significant.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Basls of Accounting

Security and contractual wransactions are recorded on a trade/contract-date basis. Interest income & recorded on an
effective yield basis, net of any applicable withholding tax Interest expense and other expenies are recorded on an accrual
basis. Realized gains and losses from security transactions are computed on the bask of the average cost of the securities
wold or coversd. Changes in the valwation of investments are recorded in the Statement of Operations as unrealized
appreciation or depreciation.

Valwation of Investments

Bands and other debt secufities, including restricted securities (other than short-term abligations but including lsted
Issues) are fair valued at thebr last sale price in the principal market in which such securities are normally traded, on the
basis af valuations furnished by a pricing service, use of which has been approved by the |pvestment Manager, of if no sale
has occurred, the bid price on the valuation date as provided by brokers who are market makers in the securities. All debt
securities with less than 12 months to maturity date, in principle shall be Tair valued wsing an amortized cost effected by an
effective yield accumulated/amartization method to their maturity date with adjustments based on comparnson with
market prices as required.

In accordance with the authoritative guidance on fair value measurements and disclosures under ULS. GANP, the Fumd
discloses the fair value of its investmenits in a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques wsed to measure
the fair walue. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to valuations based upon unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or labilities [Level 1 measwrernent) and the lowest priority to valuations based wpon unobservable
inputs that are significant bo the valuation [Level 3 measurements). The guidance establishes three levels of the fair value
hierarchy as follows:

*  Liwel 1 - Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical investments that the Fund
has the ability to access at the measurement dabe;

#  Livel 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices that are significant and observable for the astet of lability sither
directly or indirectly, including Inputs in markets that are not considered to be acthve;

*  Level 3 - Inputs that are significant and unobservable

Inputs are ubed in applying the various valuation techniques and broadly refer to the pions that market panicipants
use to make valuation decislons, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may include price information, specific and broad
credit data, liquidity statistics, and ather factors. A financial instrument’s level within the fair value hierarchy & based upon
the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. However, the determination of what
constitutes “obiarvable” requires significant judgment by the Investrment Manager. The [nvestrent Manager condidirs
observable data to ke market data which is readily available, regularly d stributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not
proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively invelved in the rebevant market. The categarization of a
financial instrument within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the instrument and does not necessanily
correspand to the Investment Manager’s perceived risk of that instrument.

Investments whose values are based on the guoted market prices in active markets, and therefore classified within Level 1,
would include actively traded equities, certain L.5. government and sowerelgn obligations, and certain asset-backed
securities and callateralized mortgage obligations, The Investment Manager would not adjust the quoted price for such
Instruments, ewen In situations where the Fund held a large position and a sale could reasonably impact the quated price.

Investmants that trade in markets that are not considiered to be active, but are valued based on quoted market prices,
dealer quotations or altemative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within Level 2, These include
investmant-grade debt securities, short-term investments and forward foreign currency exchange contracts and may also
include certain asset-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations, As Lewel 2 investments inclede positions
that are not traded in active markets and/or are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect
illiquidity and/for non-transferability, which are generally based on available market information.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Valwation of Investments fcontinuved)

Investments classified within Level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they would trade infrequently, Level 3
Instrurments would include certain asset-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations. As observable prices are
not avallable for those securities, the Fund would use valuation techniques to derive the fair value.

The inputs or methodology used for valuing securities are not necessarily an indication of the risk associated with investing
in those securities.

The fallowing table presents the financial instruments carried on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities by caption and by
level within the valuation hierarchy as of February 29, 2020. Further dassifications of the financial instruments are
prisented in the Portfolio of Investments. There were no movements batween bevels during the year,

Agsets at Fair Value Fair Value at
Level 1 Lival 2 Loval 3 February 29, 2020
Faed Incamie sD - Ll B5, 595, 050 s - LISC 55,595,050
Farwand Feregn Catrendy
Exchange Conlracts = 1019707 = 1019, 797
Total ush = UsD B, 614 887 usc = use 26,614,887
Lisbilities ot Fair Value Fair Value g
Liwverl 1 Lisvirl 2 Livid 3 Fiebruary 29, 320
Forward Forelgn Carrency
Exchange Contracts usD - W50 11,556 50 = LI5S0 121EHE
Tedal Usp = UsD 11 5R6 UsD = UsD 11586
Foreign Currency Transiation

Assets and liabilities held in currencies other than United States Dollar (“USD" or the “Functional Currency®) are translated
to the Functional Currency at the rate of exchange prevailing at the financial statement date. Income and expenses are
translated at the rate of exchange prevalling at the date on which the income or expense is Incurred. Realized and
unrealized gains and losses arising on foreign currency transactions are included in the Statement of Operations in the
period in which they occur.

The Fund does mot isolate that portion of the results of operations resulting from changes in forelgn exchange rates on
imvestmants from the fluctuations arising from changes in market prices of securities held, Such fluctuations are indudad
with the net realized and unrealized gain or loss from investmenits.

Incame Taxes

Under the current laws of the Cayman slands, there are no incomes, withholding, capital gains or other taxes payable by
the Fund. In certain jurisdictions other than the Cayman Islands, foreign taxes may be withheld at source on dividends and
interes received by the Fund, Capital gains defived by the Fund in such jurisdictions generally will be eéxempt from foreign
Income ar withholding taxes at source. The Fund intends to conduct its affairs such that it willl not be subject to Income tax
in any jurisdiction. As a reswlt, no provision for income taxes has been made in the financial statements. Unitholders may
be taxed on their proportionate share of the Fund's tax basis income based on thelr indvidual circumstances.

The Fund follows the authoritative guidance on accounting for and disdlesure of uncertainty im tax positsons (Financial
Accounting Standards Board [“FASE") - Accounting Standards Codification 740, which requires the Manager to determine
whether a tax position of the Fund is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by the applicable taxing
authority, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position,
For tax positions meeting the more likely than not threshold, the tax benefit recognized In the financial statements is
reduced by the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being realized wpon ultimate settlement
with the relevant taxing authority. The Manager has determined that there Is minimal or no effect on the financial
statements being under this authortative guidance,

Fonward Fareign Currency Exchange Contracts

Thee Fund may enter into forward foreign currency exchange contracts 1o hedge againit foreign currency exchange rate
risks on all or a portion of nonUSD denominated investments or for efficient portfolio management purposes. When
entering into a forward foreign currency exchange contract, the Fund agrees to receive or deliver a fised quantity of
foreign currancy for an agreed-upan price on an agread future date, These contracts are valued daily, and the Fund's nat
equity therein, representing unrealized appreciation/[depreciation] on the contracts as measured by the difference
between the farward foreign currency exchange rates at the dates of entry into the contracts and the forward rates at the
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Fonward Forelgn Currency Exchonge Contracts fcontinued)
reporting date, is included in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are included
in the Statement of Operations,

These instruments imvalve market risk, eredit risk, or both kinds of risks, in excess of the amount recognized in the
Statement of Assets and Liabilities. Risks arise from the possible inability of counterparties to meet the terms of their
contracts and from movement in curency and tecurities values and interest rates. In addition to the Class level hedging,
the Fund had realized loss of USD 213 on 16 forward foreign currency exchange contracts during the year with an average
notianal of USD 39,669 and an average berm to maturity of 10 days. The Fund had net realized loss of USD 175,497 on 42
forward foreign currency exchange contracts held at the JFY Monthly Distribution Class Hedped level during the year with
an average notional of USD 4,603,462 and an average term to maturity of 28 days. The Fund also had realined loss of USD
B79,116 on A0 forward foreign currency exchange contracts held at the JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Hedged leval
during the year with an average notional of USD 23,127,234 and an average term to maturity of 29 days,

Cosh ond Foreign Currency
Cash and forelgn currency comprises all currency held with Brown Brothers Harriman & Co., and overnight and other shart
term placements with ather financial institutions.

UNITS

The nit assets of the Fund are divided into JPY Maonthly Distribution Class Units, JPY Sermi-Annual Distribution Class Units,
UsD Meonthly Distributhon Class Units and USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units. The Units are denominated in United
Seated Dollar and lapanese Yen. JPY Monthly Distribution Class Units, JPY Semi-Annusl Distribution Class Units, USD
Maonthly Distribution Class Units and USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units are available to an eligible investor who &
ANy perLon, corparation of entity which & not (i) a citizen of resident of the ULS., a partnership ofganized of existing in the
U5, or any corporation, trust or other entity organized under the laws of or extsting in the US; (8} person or entity resident
of domiciled in the Cayman Blands (excluding ary object of a charitable trust or power of an exempted of non-redident
Cayman klands company); [ill] unable to subscribe for or hald Units without violating applicable laws, or () a custodian,
nominee, or trustes for any person, corporation or entity described in (i) to iii) abowe.

The Manager may determineg to issue one or mare classes of Units of the Fund without prior notice to or written consent of
the Unitholders,

All of the net assets attributable to JPY Monthly Distribution Class Units, J#Y Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units Class,
UISD Monthby Distribution Class Units and USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units, are held by two Linitholders.

1P Monthly JEY Serni-Annual LED Manthly  USD Semi-Annual

o Class  Distribution Oass  Distribution Class  Distributtion Class Tetal Fured
Balamsie Al Fobewany 28, 2009 UsSD EA26936 USD 36935001 WUSD 2TEES65 USD 23.351.36E USD 7L4T5ETD
Subseriptions during the year 92671 T 567 616,045 21,054,737 23,394,020
Redemptions duting the year {3,037,545) {2,222, 448} {99T.618) {7.220,0B6) (13,477,687)
Distrioutions (96, 1.26) {309,101 {57.935) [263,722) {7 6,887)
Ket increme imnet assets resulting
froen operatons 574,514 2,586,563 154,039 2,153 418 5,508.534

Ket Assets at Febraary 29, 2020 UsDr  GEGDASD  USD 3R 1I0DS5E2  USD 257093 USD 39075715 USD B6.5T3.H40

Kumber af Un'ts in ssue at

Fearmry 28, 2019 98,124 425,719 250,020 1,322,763 3,126,626
Uit insued dusing Uhe yesr 11,138 BOT7 1,310 2018963 2,100 ARR
Units redeemmied during the yeae {34,347 [24,553) (5 361} {656 833} {B56, 06 3)
Numiser af Units in ssue at

Fetirusny 29, 2020 74,915 419,243 242,568 3642 534 4,370,021

Met Asset Value per Unitat
Fergaty 29, 2020 usE 2156 USD 9312 Wb 1040 U5 .73

Suhseriptions for Units

JFY Monthly Distribution Class Units and JFY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units were first issued at an initial issue price
af IPY 10,000 per Unit. The minimurn initial subscription for JPY Monthly Distribution Class Units and JPY Semi-Annual
Distribution Class Units per subscriber is 1 Unit or more, and in muliples of 1 Units thereafter,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

UINITS [eontinued)

Swbseriptions for Uait (continued)

LISD Monthby Distribution Class Units and USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units were first Bsved at an initial issue price
of USD 10,00 per Unit. The minimum initial subscription for USD Manthly Distribution Class Units and USD Semi-Annual
Distribution Class Units per subscriber is 10 Units or more, and in multiples of 1 Unit thereafter,

The Manager may waive or change the minimum initial and additional subscription amounts et forth abowe in its sole
discretion from time to time,

Unit Redemptions

The Fund recognizes redemptions in accordance with the authoritative guidance on distinguishing liabilities from equity,
Redemptions, whether expressed as United States Dollar, Japanese Yen or Units, are recognized as liabikties when each of
the Japanese Yen and United 5tates Dodlar Unit amownts requested in the redemption notice becomas fixed, which
renerally may occur either at the time of the receipt of the notice, or on the last day of a fiscal year, depending on the
nature of the request. As a result, redemptions paid after the end of the year, but based upon year end net assets are
reflected as redemptions payable at February 29, 2020, There were USD 126,955 and JPY nil of redemptions payable as at
February 29, 2020 induded as Payable for Units redeemed in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities.

Repurchose af Uinits
Units may be repurchased at the option of Unitholders on each Repurchase Day.

Unitholders wishing to have Units repurchased must send a completed Repurchase Notice to the Distributors so as to be
received by the Distributors ne later than 3200 p.m. [Tokyo time) on the relevant Repurchase Day. The Distributors will
send the completed Repurchase Motices to the Sub-Administrater by no later than 6:00 p.m. (Tokyo time) on the relevant
Riepurchase Day or by such other time as the Sub-Administrator may in any particular case determine,

If the relevant Repurchase Notice is not received by the Sub-Administrator by the relevant time, the Repurchase Notice will
be held over until the nest following Repurchase Day after the Repurchase Notice is received and Units will then be
redeermed at the relevant repurchase price applicabe on that Repurchase Day.

A Repurchase Notice, once given, is irrevocable.

Compuilsory Redemption

I the ewent that the Trustee or the Manager shall determine that any Units of any class of a Series Trust are being held by
or for the benefit of a person who & not an Eligible Investor for such Seried Trust or that such holding would cause the
Trust ar the Series Trust to be reguired to register, be subject to tax or violate the laws of any jurisdiction, or if the Trustee
of the Manager has fieadon to doubt the bgitimacy of the source of monies usid to fund the subscription of purchase of
such Units, or for whatever reason (which may not be disclosed by the Trustee or the Manager to Unithalders) that the
Trustine of the Manager considers appropriatic at its absolute discretion having regard to the interests of the Unitholders of
the relevant Class or the Unithalders of the Series Trust as a whole, then the Manager, after consultation with the Trustee,
may direct the holder thereof to sell (subject to the provisions described below in the section headed “Transfer of Units®)
such Units within 10 days and provide to the Trustee and the Manager evidence of such sale, falling which the Manager
may risdeem such Units,

Termination of the Fund
Upon termination, the Manager will realize all the assets of the Fund, and after paying out or retaining adequate pravision
far all Eabilities properly payable and retaining provision for the costs of the termination, the Trustee shall distribute the
procesds of that realization to the Unitholders proportionately to their respective interests in the Fund as of the date of
termination of the Fund.

Distributions to Lnitholders

The Manager may, from time to time, in its sole discretion, dedare distributions from September 2017, Distribution will be
declared on each Dstribution Record Date and caleulated on each Ex-Distribution Date. Distribution Periad is a period
commencing from the calendar day following the preceding Distribution Record Date and ending on and including the
Distribution Record Date. The distributions will be paid on the relevant Distribution Payment Date, provided that such
amount (if any} declared with respect to the relevant Class of Units in respect of the applicable Distribution Period shall
only be paid out of the Series Trust's net income, realized and unrealized capital gains and ary distributable funds of the
Series Trust attributable to such Class of Units as determined by the Manager.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

UNITS [eortinued)

Distribwtions ta Unitholders fcantinued)

The declaration of distributions to Unithalders reduces the Class Level Net Asset Value per Unit withaut any corresponding
change in the number of Class Level Units per Unitholder. This results in a Unithalder's overall investment in the Fund
being rediced. In addition, any distributions during a period which are in excess of the Fund®s net increase in net assets
resulting from operations results in a portion of the distribution being return of capitall

The amaunt of distributions, if any, will be determined by the Manager in its role discretion, and no representation or
puarantes is made that a distribution will be made in respect of each or ary Distribution Period.

Capitaliration

The Net Asset Value per Unit is caleulated for each Dealing Day (each Valuation Day, or such other day of days as the
Manager may from time to time determine in respect of the Series Trust), by dividing the difference in value between the
Fund's assets and liabilities (including accrued fees and expenses of the Fund) by the number of Units outstanding.

Thie Trust Deed stipulaties that the number of Units to be issued in the Fund shall be unlimited as the Manager shall
determine and shall be without par value.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Accounting Standard Codification (ASC) 815-10-50 requires disclosures about derivative instrumants and hedging activities,
It requires that the Fund disclose: a) how and why an entity uses dersative instruments, b) how derivative instruoments and
related hedged items are accounted far and ) how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity’s
finarcial position, financial perfarmance and cash flaws,

The Fund transacts forward derivative instruments primarily for hedging purposes with each instrument’s primary risk
expasure being foreign exchange risk. The forward foreign currency exchange contracts held by the Fund do not qualify as
hedges for accounting purposes under the requirements of ASC 815, The fair value of these dervative instruments is
includied in the Statement of Adsets and Liabilities with changes in fair value reflected as realized gaina/[losses) of nét
change in unrealized appreciation/[depreciation] on derivatives within the Statement of Operations (Nabe 2).

The Fund may enter into an International Swaps and Derivative Associathon, Inc. Master Agreement [TSDA Master
Agretment”} with its counterparties in order to mitigate counterparty risk. The ISDA Master Agreement & typically
negotiated by the Fund and its counterparties, containing the bi-lateral verms and conditions for all subsequent derivative
transactions. The ISDA Master Agreement allows for the netting of all amounts owed to or due fram counterparty into a
single net payment if a credit event or default should occur.

At February 29, 2020 the Fund had entered into the following derivathve assets by counterparty net of amounts avallable
for affset under a Master Netting greement [“MNA®) and net of any collateral received by the Fund:

Dhevivative Asbets Derivative: Mon-tash Cash Het Amount of
Counte rparty Subject to a MNA  Available for Offset Collateral Received Collateral Received Cwerivative Assets’
Broaen Brothers Mariman & o, USD 10 Ush - LSk - usor ~ LS 10
Citibans PB 1,019, 787 {12 BEb) - - 1,005, 3411
Totsd usp 1,009,797 USD | 12886} USD usp U 5,006,911

AR Febrwary 29, 2020 the Fund had entered into the following derivative liabilities by counterparty net of amounts available
for offset under a MMA and net of any collateral pledged by the Fund:

[+ v Dirivati Hor-cash Cash Hat Amount of
Courberparty Liabsilities Available for Offset Collateral Pledged Collateral Mledged  Derivative
Subject 1o s MNA Limbilitings *
Citigan PB usp 12,886 USD {12,886} USD —usD —usp -
Total uso 12, 886 S0 {12,886} USD — S0 —usD -
VMt i e (R E ST o fpayabde lisin 1he Ty i e i o dedaide.

126/207



DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [continued)

At February 29, 2020 the Fund had entered into the following derivatives:

Aiie! Darivatives Linkility Derivativas
Ditrisativs Statarnant Suatarant
Hat Accounted for 55 of Aisats and of Assats and
ledging Instraments Lishilitiet Location Liahilitiet Location Fair Value

Forward Breign currency  Unnealiced appreciation

exchange contracs on forward forelgn
{Curremcy Risk) currency exchange
conkracts

Unrealiced depreciation

on forward foregn

currency exchange [154:] [1.2 B8a)
contracts

The ellect of defivative instruments on the Statement of Operations for the year ended February 19, 2020:

Loeation of Raralinid Appriciatian or
Derivatives Not Acoounted Gair or [Loss) Gaain or {Loss) | Depreciation) on
Tar as Hedging Instrumants on Derivatives on Derivatives Derivativas

et realized losses on forward foreign

Forward foreign currency currency exchange contracts;

exchange conkracts change in wnrealized appeeciation

{Currency Risk] {deprecation) on forward lorelgn currency USH {1054 826)  USD 1,209 SES
exchange contracts

MAMNAGEMENT FEES

Thie Manager it entitled to receive out of the assets of the Seres Trust 4 management fee of a total up to 0UEE% per annum
[(L03% per annum in respect of fee for the Manager, 0.25% per annum of the Net Asset Valwe up to USD 400 million and
0.22% per annum of the Net Avet Value over USD 400 million in respect of fee for the Investment Manager, and 0.0 pér
annum of the Net Asset Value up to USD 400 million and 0.35% per annum of the MNet Asset Value over LISD 400 million in
respect of fee for the Sub-lnvestrent Manager) of the Net Asset Value sccrued on, and calculated a3 at, @ach Valuation
Day and payable monthly in arrears, In addition, the Manager is also entitled to be reimbursed out of the assets of the
Series Trust for any expenses incurned by it in the proper performance of its powers and duties as permitted under the
Master Trust Deed. During the year ended February 29, 2020, the Manager earned fees of USD 512,288, of which USD
45,595 it atill outstanding as of February 29, 2020,

Thie Manager will pay thi fees of the Investment Manager out of it fees. The Investment Managers will be responsible for
paying the fees of the Sub-investment Manager and any of the Investrent Manager's delegates or other parties appainted
by the Investrment Manager to perform its functions in respect of the Series Trust

CUSTOMAN AND SUB-ADMIMISTRATOR'S FEES

The Fumd has a custody and accounting agreéement with Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. (the “Custedian” and “Sub-
Admvinistrator”) for which the Custodian receives a fee calculated and paid monthly based on total assets and transaction
vl

The Custodian and Sub-Adrministrator is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust an administration fee
[including transfer agent fee) calculated based on the Met Asset Value as at each Valuation Day at the following annual
rate:

- 0.07% up to |and including) USD 250 million;

- 0065 up to [and including) LISD 500 million;

- 0.05% over LISD 500 millien,

Such adminkstration fee ks payable monthly in arrears, and subject to the minimum annual fee of LUSD 60,000, The Sub-
Administrator is alko entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust fees for currency administration and execution
services at the rate of 0,05% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the relevant Unit Class, subject to the minimum annual
few of USD 50,000, In addition, the Custodian and Sub-Administrator is also entitled to receive customary safekeeping fees
and transaction charges, All out-of-pocket expenses of the Custodian and Sub-Administrator shall also be borne by the
Series Trust, During the year ended February 29, 2020, the Custodian earned fees of USD 99,038, of which USD 47,530 is
still outstanding as of February 29, 2020,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

TRUSTEE FEES

The Trustee is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a combined fee at the rate of 0U015% per annum of
the Net Asset Value accreed on, and caloulated as at each Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrears, subject to a
minémum annueal fee of USD 15,000, During the year ended February 249, 2020, the Trustee earned fees of USD 15,043, of
which USD 3,847 is still outstanding as of February 29, 2020

AGENT COMPANY'S FEES

The Agent Company is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0.02% per annum of the
Met Asset Value accrued on, and calculated as at, each Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrears. During the year
ended February 29, 2020, the Agent earned fiees of USD 15,067, of which USD 2,770 is still outstanding as of February 29,
2020,

DISTRIBUTION FEES

The Distributors are entitled to receive out of the assets of the Serkes Trust a fee at the rate of 0.60% per annurn of the Net
Asset Value accrued on, and calculated as at each Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrears. During the year ended
February 29, 2020, the Distributors earned fees of USD 452,019, of which USD 81,530 Is still outstanding as of February 29,
2020,

OTHER FEES AND EXPENSES

The costs and expenses in cennection with the establishmient of the Series Trust and the offering of the Units, together
with the establishment of the Trust, including the costs and expenses of preparing and printing any prospectus of
explanatory brochures reguired, were estimated at launch to amount to approsimately USD 140,000, Such costs and
expenses will be amortised within the first five (5) financial years of the Series Trust unless the Trustee decides that some
other mathod shall be applied. The Administrator receives USD 1,500 per annum for FATCA § CRS compliance services,

FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Fund’s activities expase i to a varsety of financial risks: market risk (including price nsk, interest rate risk, and currency
risk), eredit risk and liquidity risk.

Market Risk
All irvestmenits presant a risk of loss of capital The Investment Manager moderates this risk through a careful selection of
securities and other financial instruments.

The Fund's investmant management procedd is deseribed in Nate 1. The primary determinant of the Fund®s ability ta mesat
Its objective of mid to long term capital appreciatien while earning income s dependent on the perfarmance of the
irvestment in the residential and ecommancial morgage-backed securities.

The values of the Fund's investments are affected by a number of factors, including but nat limited to, changes in the wider
econamy, financial and currency markets, forelgn currency exchange rates, interest rate movements and credit ratings of
debt issuers, The Fund enters into forward contracts which to varying degrees represent a market risk in excess of the
amount reflected on the Fund’s Statement of Assets and Liabilities. The notienal amount of the contract represents the
extent of the Fund’s participation in these financial instruments. Market risks associated with such contracts arise due to
the possible movements in forelgn currency exchange rates underlying these instruments.

Other market and credit risks include the possibility that there may be an illiquid market for the contracts, that the dhange
in the value of the contract may not directly correlate with changes in the value of the underlying currencies or that the
counterparty to a forward contract defaults on its obligation to perform under the terms of the contract. The Fund's
expasure o loss due to counterparty non-performance on open futures, forwards, swap and options contracts is limited to
the unrealized appreciation inherent in such financial instruments which are recognized in the Statement of Assets and
Liabilities.

Asset-backed securities investment risk

Assiet-backed securities inwestrent have the risk that borrawers may default on the obligations that underdie the asset-
backed security and that, during periods of falling interest rates, asset-backed securities may be called or prepaid, which
may riesult i the Series Trust having to reinvest proceeds in other investments at a lower interest rate, and the risk that
the impairment of the value of the collateral underlying a security in which the Series Trust invests [due, for example, to
non-paymient of loans) will result in a reduction in the value of the secuwrity.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [continued)

Concentration risk

The Series Trust imeests substantially in bonds issued by U5 agencies in accordance with its principal investment
strategles. Because such securities are bsued by a limited number of government agenches, any actual or potential
disruption to those agencies could present a risk to the Seres Trust. Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, which are other
Rovemment-sponsored Issuers of mortgage-back securities similar to those guaranteed by Ginnle Mae, suffered such a
disruption in the mortgage crisis of 2007 - 2008 and were placed under federal conservatarship at that time. Ginnie Mae
securities, unlike those of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, are backed by the full faith and credit of the .5, government and
are subject to the risks of U5, government securities. Similar to other issuars, changes to the finandal condition or credit
rating of the U.5. government may cause the value of the Series Trust's exposure to U5, agencies securities to decline,

Maontgage-backed securities risk

Mortgage-backed securities represent interests in “pools” of mortgages and are subject to credit, interest rate,
prepayment and extension risk. Mortgage-backed securities react differently to changes in interest rates than other bonds
and the prices of mortgage-backed securities may reflect adverse economic and market conditions. Small movemants in
interest rates (bath increases and decreases) may quickly and significantly reduce the value of certain montgage-backed
securities. Default or bankruptcy of a counterparty to a to-be-announced transaction would expose the Series Trust to
possible loss.

Mortgage-reloted and Other Asset-Backed Securities risk

Carrtain Funds may invest in mortgage-relatisd and other acset-backed securities that directly or indirectly represent a
participation in, or are secured by and payable from, kans on real property. Mortgage-related securities are created from
pools of residential or commercial mortgage keans, inchuding mortgage laans made by savings and loan institutions,
martgage bankers, commercial banks and others. These securities provide a monthly payment which consists of bath
interest and principal. Interest may be determined by fived or adjustable rates. The rate of prepayments on underlying
martgages will affect the price and volatibty of a mortgage-related security, and may have the effect of shortening or
extending the effective duration of the secwrity relathee to what was anticipated at the time of purchase. The timely
payment of principal and interest of certain mortgage-related securities is guaranteed with the full faith and credit of the
US, Govemment, Pools oeated and guarantesd by non-governmental issuers, including government-spensoned
cofparations, may be supported by various forms of insurance of guarantees, but there can be no assurance that private
Insurers gr guarantors can meet their obligatiens under the insurance poficles or guarantee arrangements. Many of the
risks of investing In mortgage-related securities secured by commercial mortgage loans reflect the effects of local and
other economic conditions. on real estate markets, the ability of tenants to make kease payments, and the ability of a
property bo atract and retain tenants.

Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the potential loss that the Fund would incur If the counterparties or issuers of debt securities falled
to perform pursuant to the terms of their obligations to the Fund, For exchange-traded contracts, the exchange acts as the
counterparty to specific transactions and, therefore, bears the risk of delivery to and from counterparties of specific
positions, The Fund’s management does not consider that credit risk related to open derivative contracts will have material
adverse effect an the financial candition of the Fund.

Although the Manager monitors the Custodian and believes it to be an appropriate custodian, there k& no guarantee that
this ar any custodian that the Fund may wse from time to time, will not become insohent, which could lead to losses for
the Fund,

‘While bath the L5, Bankruptcy Code and the Securities Investor Protection Act of 1970 seek to protect customer property
in the event of a failure, insalvency or liguidation of an institution, there is no certainty that, in the event of a failure of an
Institution that has custody of Fund assets, the Fund would not incur lesses due to its assets being unavailable for a period
of time, ultimately less than full recovery of its assets, or both, Because all of the Fund's cash is in custody with a singhe
institution, such losses could be significant and could materially impair the ability of the Fund to achieve its investment
objective. The Fund & subject to credit risk to the extent that this institution may be unable to fulfill its obligations to repay
amounts owed,

Liquidity Risk
Inyvestors shauld be aware that the value of Units might fall as wiell as rise. Investmant in the Fund invohoes a degree of risk;
there can be no assurance that the Fund’s investment objective will be achieved,

The Fund ks exposed to daily repurchase of its Units but management believes that the Fund has sufficient resources to
maet the prissent and foreseeable needs of its business operations and, if necessary, the liquidity to fund repurchases and
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [continued)
Liguidity Risk fcontinued)

acheve a market position appropriately reflecting a smaller capital base. This position s monitored continually by
managemaent to ensure that the Fund has the ability to meet its obligations.

Cwrrency Risk

The Fund holds monetary and non-monetary assets and incurs monetary and non-monetary liabilities denominated in
currencies ather than USD, the Functional Currency, It is therefore exposed to currency risk, as the value of the assets and
liakiliies denominated in other currencies (“non-US0") will fluctuate due to changes in exchange rates. The Fund may
enter into currency hedging transactions from time to time in order to limit its exposure to currency risk,

The investment manager monitars the Fund's currency exposure on a daily basis.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGEMCIES

In the narmal course of business, the Trustee on behall of the Fund may enter into contracts that contain a variety of
representations and warranties and which provide general indemnifications. The general indemnifications apply not only
to the extent such representations and warranties are untrue but abo may cover third parties such as the Fund's
Administrator, Auditor or Investmient Manager for claims related to the services performed for the Fund, The Trustes's
maximum exposure under any such arrangements is unknown, a5 exposure only arises to the extent future claims that
hawi not yit accurned are made against the Trusbee. However, based on experiencd, thee Trustes expects the risk of kds to
be remate.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management performed a subsequent events réview up to June 26, 2020 which is the date the financial statements were
availabhi to be issued.

Effectivee March 1, 2020 through June 26, 2020, there were subscriptions of USD 94,307 in respect of JFY Monthly
Distribution Class and there were subseriptions of USD 1,690 in respect of JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class, there were
subscriptions of USD 1,054,815 in respect of USD Monthly Distribution Class, there were subscriptions of USD 100,915 in
respect of USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class.

Effective March 1, 2020 through lune 26, 2020, there were redemptions of USD 1,630,294 in respect of IFY Monthly
Distribution Class and there were redemptions of USD 745,021 in respect of JFY Semi-Annual Distribution Class, there were
redemnption af USD 460,675 in respect of USD Monthly Distribution Class, there were redemptions of WSD 662,193 in
respect of USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class,

There were distributions of USD 23,667 in respect of JFY Monthly Distribution Class. There were distributions of LISD
153,869 in respect of JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class, There were distributions of USD 23,250 in respect of LSD
Monthly Distribution Class. There were distributions of USD 217,396 in respect of USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class.
COVID-19

On March 11, 2020 the World Health Organization dedared the coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID -197) a pandemic.
Uncertainty remains around (i) the length of the disruption, and (i) the impact of the COVID-19 on global markets.

There are no ather significant events to repoart as they relate tothe Fund.
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2021

57,678,622.61 6,378,102,088
2,300,820.18 254,424,696
55,377,802.43 6,123,677,393
371,844
1,659,102
45,485
345,581
10.04 1,110
10.50 1,161

9,478

9,744
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2020 31
2020 2019
5,628,385 622,387 3,938,928 435,567
2,851,607 315,331 3,190,108 352,762
70,125 7,754 71,250 7,879
8,550,117 945,472 7,200,286 796,208
8,550,117 945,472 7,200,286 796,208
148,200 16,388 146,480 16,198
79,840 8,829 124,271 13,742
1,643,547 181,743 2,462,391 272,291
1,871,587 206,960 2,733,142 302,231
480,000 2020 31
2019 31
480,000 480,000 53,078 480,000 53,078
6,198,530 685,433 3,987,144 440,898
6,678,530 738,512 4,467,144 493,977
8,550,117 945,472 7,200,286 796,208
17 2020
129332
110.58
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2020 31
2020 2019
5,628,385 622,387 3,938,928 435,567
2,851,607 315,331 3,190,108 352,762
70,125 7,754 71,250 7,879
8,550,117 945,472 7,200,286 796,208
1 0.111 1 0.111
1 0.111 1 0.111
8,550,118 945,472 7,200,287 796,208
148,200 16,388 146,480 16,198
79,840 8,829 124,271 13,742
1,643,547 181,743 2,462,391 272,291
1,871,587 206,960 2,733,142 302,231
480,000 2020 31
2019 31
480,000 480,000 53,078 480,000 53,078
6,198,531 685,434 3,987,145 440,898
6,678,531 738,512 4,467,145 493,977
8,550,118 945,472 7,200,287 796,208
17 2020
129332
110.58
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2020 31
2020 2019
19,213,975 2,124,681 22,335,065 2,469,811
19,213,975 2,124,681 22,335,065 2,469,811
(1,183,017) (130,818) (1,276,979) (141,208)

(15,585,538)  (1,723,449) (19,056,557)  (2,107,274)
(15,764) (1,743) (20,971) (2,319)
(228,510) (25,269) (161,343) (17,841)
(17,012,829)  (1,881,279) (20,515,850)  (2,268,643)

2,201,146 243,403 1,819,215 201,169
10,240 1,132 (53,798) (5,949)
10,240 1,132 (53,798) (5,949)

2,211,386 244,535 1,765,417 195,220

2,211,386 244,535 1,765,417 195,220

2,211,386 244,535 1,765,417 195,220

110.58
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2020 31
¢ >y >y ¢ >y > c > o D
480,000 53,078 2,221,727 245,679 2,701,727 298,757
1,765,417 195,220 1,765,417 195,220
31 480,000 53,078 3,987,144 440,898 4,467,144 493,977
2,211,386 244,535 2,211,386 244,535
31 480,000 53,078 6,198,530 685,433 6,678,530 738,512
110.58
2020 31
2020 2019
2,201,146 243,403 1,819,215 201,169
10,240 1,132 (53,798) (5,949)
2,211,386 244,535 1,765,417 195,220
339,626 37,556 1,074,174 118,782
(861,555) (95,271)  (1,182,743) (130,788)
1,689,457 186,820 1,656,848 183,214
1,689,457 186,820 1,656,848 183,214
3,938,928 435,567 2,282,080 252,352
5,628,385 622,387 3,938,928 435,567

110.58
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2020 31
309GT
EU
IFRS IFRS IFRIC
2020 31 IFRS
1ASB IFRIC EU
IFRS 1ASB
IFRIC
IFRS 16 2019
2020 31 2019 31
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JPY GBP SGD
2020 31
2019 31 10
2020 2019
JPY 36,000 54,000
GBP 76,000 95,000
SGD 15,000 56,000
EUR 2,000
2020 31 2020
5,628,385 5,628,385
2,851,607 2,851,607
70,125 70,125
148,200 148,200
79,840 79,840
1,643,547 1,643,547
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2019 31 2019

3,938,928 3,938,928

3,190,108 3,190,108

71,250 71,250

146,480 146,480

124,271 124,271

2,462,391 2,462,391

2020 31 2020 31
2020 31 a
@ ®) ®

) ¢ ¢ C
4,939,036 686,456
2,265,335 991,951

6,464,511 179,247
1,801,198 137,386
115,458 7,001
16,010,138 179,247 1,822,794
2019 31 2019 31
2019 31 a
@ o) ®

) ¢ ¢ ¢
4,735,296 339,775
9,478,941 1,253,147
2,634,320 307,671
2,071,148 549,065
136,852 12,733
19,056,557 2,462,391

(a
(b
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MNIEKO® AM GLOBAL CAYALAN LTD
CONSOLIDATEDRD STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT M MARCH a0
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e

15935008
1 1940,108
71.2%

TAML2EE

T200,256

146480
124,271
246230

Pste 200
Asseis
Cmrrend Assets
Cash aid cash equivalmts -1 LG b
Accoim s Fecervabile 2 BRY GOT
Accrued moome end propaid expense T0125
Tolal Currenl Asaels 8,550,117
Total Mon- Currenid Assels
Tolal Assels ] 8.550,117
Liabilities aml Eqisity
Current Liabilities
Accruod expenscs amd deferred income 5 148 2040
Accoumls payable THEAD
Amounis peyable 10 group underiakngs L 1543547
Tatal Current Liabilities 15715587

2733142

Equlty

Caplital and Reserves Atiribuiable to Equity
Halders of the Company

Share caplital (31 par value, 450,000 shares
sl horered, 480600 shares =med and AR WA
odtstan<mg st 31 March 2020 and 1019

A8 0

1587144

4467144

Retained earmings 6,198,530
Total Edquity 6.675 430
Total Liablkites and Equity 5 8580117

7200256

The anaeved noles from 1 bo % Fomm an integral pan of these fancial statements.

The financial stabements on pages & Lo |7 ware approved by tbe Board of Directors on & Aogust 2000 ancd asthocesed for s and

sigreed on s hehalf by

Company regisered nuember: 179332
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MNIKED AM CLOBAL CAYAMAN LTD
COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2020

Mok 2030 w9
Asaris
Currenl Assels
Cash and cash equivalents ] 5628 383 © ER LR
Accounts recenable 2R 607 3,150 108
Axenaed inooene and propasd exponss T0125 71,250
Total Curienl Asiéls 555,117 TR0, 86
Mom - Currenl Assels
Investmen i subsidiary 3 | 1
Taotal Mon-Curvent Assels | 1
Total Assets 3 8550118 § T.RMLIET
Liabilities aml Eqity
Cirrent Lialilities
Accraed expenses and deferred mcone L1 4820 5 148 480
Accourts payable Tgan 12437
Amoints payable to group andenakings & 1.643 547 2462391
Total Current Liabdlijes 1,571,587 2,733,142
Equisy
Capital and Feserves Abribatatde o Equlty
Halders of the Company
Share capilal {31 par value, 420,000 shares mthorized,
A0, shares tssped and oulstsnding # 31 Mardh AR D ABT M)
2000 and 2009)
Retained eamings 6,198,531 3087045
Taolal Exuity 6678 53] 4467, 145
Total Liabikities and Equity 3 580,118 3§ T 200,287

The amnemied notex from 1 1o 8 form an mlegral pant of thess fmndcsl dalonmis.

The finuncisl statements on peges & Lo |7 were approved by ibe Board of Directors on & Aogust 20030 and ssthorised for isase and
signeed on its bohalf by

B tia]
W=t A

Company registered member: 129352
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MIERG AN GLOBAL CAYMAN LTI

ETATEMENT OF COMSOLIDATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR EXNDED 31 MARCH 1020

Olpratiingg Hevenises
Investment management and adviscry fees fram third partics

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses
Sub-advisary fees with thind parties
Sub-advisory fees with group undertakings
Adwchit fees
(e operating and adminisirative expoises
Total oporaling exponscs

Operating Profit

Oilser [neome / (Expenses)
Cither ncome{expense), Net foreign echange gain (loss)
Total other expenses

Profit Before Incoane Tax
Income tax expense

Profil atftributabde o equlty holders of the parent

Cether Comprehensive lncome for the year
Total Compreliensive Incame for e vear

All the Group's operalins are chssifiod & continusng.

The anmeved mobes from 1 1o 8 Form an anlegral pan of these fmncial statememts.

Noke
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2020 2014
19213972 11335063
19213975 335065
{1 AB3.00Th (1,276,975

(15585538 {1 056.257)
(15, 764) 20571
CXEE 51000 (161 388}
(17,00 2,55 (20,51 5.850)
2.201,144 1815212
10,240 (3,758}
10,240 (53,790
2211346 1,765,417
2211384 1765417
22011384 17685417
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MIEED AM CGLOBAL CAVAAN LTD
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 1020

Note {”,u':’l; ':;".‘r'r'.'lf:‘ Total
Balunce at | April 2014 T Wiooh 8 2231ET s rouicrt
Net profit . 1765417 [I6sALT
Dividend pibd 5 i :
Balunce at 31 March 2619 5 W00 8 39sTidd s ademau
Nt prefit : 2211386 2211386
Dividend paid ;
Balance a1 31 March 2020 5 w000 5 Ges 5 GeTSI0

Thie anmeved moles from 1 ba % form an integral pant of these finwncial statements
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MNIEK® AM CLOBAL CAYAMAN LTD
CONSOLIPATEDR CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 1020
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Ml 200 Fo 0 L
Cash Fhows from Gperating Activities
Operating Profit g 2200146 1519215
Addfusdmenis for
el foreign exchmnge loss 10,340 {53,748
Operational cash flows before movements in working 2371386 165417
capital
Chamges In operaiing ssaets and labilites
Diecrease | (imcresse) in recenables IAHED6 1,074,174
(Decrcase) | Increase in payables (B61_.555) (1.182,743)
et Cash Ceneraled from Operating Actlvitfies 1,689 457 1,655,548
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Dividends pakd -
et Cash from Flmamcing Activitles -
Mol Increase [m Cash and Cash Equivalends 1,689 457 1,655, 548
Cash md cush equivalonix, beginming of the yoar 1058 98 2R 00
Cash and Cash Equivalents. End of the Year -1 X625 88 1,508 928

Thie anmexed modes from 1 to % form an integral part of these fencie] shabements.
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MIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR EXDED M MARCH 1029

Naote 1= Genernl Infornoiion

Nikka AM Global Covman Lid the Company”™) snd fis subsidiary g ether “the Oroup™) are imcomorsied @ d domialed m the
Cayman Islamds. The wddress of the registered office is PO Box 309GT, Ugland House, South Churdh Street, Grand Cayman,
Cayman slands. The peincipal activities of the Group snd Company durimg e Year were the provision of mvestiment advice and
invesiment management services bo thind paribes and other group menbas. These pon-dawory finsncial aaements have been
propared o agd the prepartion of consalidated financial $alonmis for the intomeedinle parent company_

Note ! — Summary of Significant Accounting Principles
The principal accounting palicies adopled are st out below,

Hasls of preparation

Thie Group and Companys financial statemenis have been prepared i accordamos with Inlem atienal Fisancil Reponing Standards
as adopted by the European Union (IFRSs as sdopted by the EU) and [FRIC interpretations applicsble fo companies reporting
mniber IFRS. Ax ml 31 March 20200 the Compuey bad adopted all IFR S @nd mlerpretations that had been i sased by the Intomational
Accounting Stamdands Bosnd ("LASET) and Imtemations] Financial Reporting Intapretations Committes (“IFR1C), and endorsed
by the EL. The accounting policies et out below bave been appdicd consistenily 1o all periods presented m these financial
statenments. IFRSs comprise accounting sandards saed by the LTARE snd its predocessor body as well as interpretations fssued by
the IFRIC and its predecessor bady.

1 preparing s set of fifnoal Qalemnenls, he Comipany prepared plasble downsde soendfros sich as redudlon i freveniies
due 1o ghobal market declmes reaalting from the pasdemic. Management is satisfied tht the resuis of these scenanios supports the
going conoem baxis of preparation.

Basls of consolidation

Subvachiarres are entitics conlrodled by the Group. Control exists when the Group bas the power 1o govern the financial snd operating
policies of an enlity 0 as 10 obtain beneffls from its activilies, In assessing contral, the Group takes into considertion potential
valing rights that sre carently exercisable. The aoquisition dale is the dale on which control is irmsferred 1o the soguirer, The
financial stalemsents of subsidiarics are inchided m the conselidaed finmeial stabensemis from the date thal control commienoes
wnlil the dale that control cexses. Losses applicable to the non-conirolling inlerests in 3 subsidiary are sllocmted to the nom-
comtrolling milereds evan if doing o caises the non-controlling interess to bave a deficil balasee.

ew seoounding standards adopied
IFRS 16 Liexse Accounting 14 dfective from | Jauasy 2019, The comgany has so bases and therefoee the aandarnd has no elfoc
o e company”s financial stalements.

Measurenent convention
The financial gstements bave been prepared under the hidonical oo convention

Esdlenates aied asamplions

The preparution of financial dalements requires managemenl to make edimabes md asasmplions that affect the wmounts reported
fior assicts and Habitkes as s the balance sheet date snd e senounts reponted for revenues snd enpenses during the vear. The mature
of gst imation mesns that actual oubcomes could differ from those estimates. The sssumptions snd edimates, which are continuoushy
reviewed, are based on past experience arwd other factors, inchading expeciations regarding likely developments in the futare. Al
31 Bdarch 2020 sed 2019 there wers no mutenial cdmales of sssumplions.

Accounts receivable

Accoiints peceivable melude amounts due for mamagemenl, advisory amd performance Tees and ansounts due from cugomens and
athers. All accounts receivable sre repavable on demand or within one yesr. They are recorded in the balance sheet at codl, redisced
by appropoiate allowmoes for ctimated imecoverabile smounds, and they ane mieresd bearng.

Accounts payable

Avccounts paysble mchide smounts due for subsmbdismy services nd parformance fees and amonts due 1o vendors @nd oltsers.
Al acconinds payable are classafied according 1o the substance of the contractual amangonm! eeioied mto. They are pajable on
demmnil or within one year and are reconded on the balance dheet at cosl, Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured,
inleredt free and hanve mo Fioed Lermas of repayment

Cashy aned cash equivalents

ash and cash cqaivmlents comprse aish in banks and in hand end short dem deposils with an orgimal matenty of three months
o less and forelgn asrencics bedd by the Group and Conspany, For the puspeses of the cash flow statensent, cash el cash
equivabants conssst of cash and cash equivalents 25 defined sbove, net of cotstmeding bk overdrafts.

Operating revenses

Operaling revenues includé comniisssns and invedmenl mamgemen], invedmenl i.dﬂsn'y and peerf o fees. Oy
revenues ane metsaned ol the Fair value of e consideraison recerved o receivable Tor sarvices |.I'm-.~dt-|.l=1 Ih:nnrmd I:{l.lh:i'ﬂf
busmess, et of discounts, il fees, VAT manid other sales refated taxes,

IFES 15, Revenise from Comtracts with Customers replaced [AS 18 Revense and introdaced & five e approads 16 fevenue
recognition; 1) identifying the contract with the cudiom ar; inp Ldﬂ:l'l'}mg the ]'ufmm obligaisons; iii} identify the comtract price
I associted revenoe, ivh allocate the consadaoralion 1o the relevant porfs ¢ obligations, and %) recognising the revenue as the
performance ebligations are safisfied,
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MIKKG AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR EXDED M MARCH 1020

Thie Company has applied [FRS 15 retrospectively, bad has determined that dhere is no adpustmeni 1o the retamed camings a5 o |
Agril 2008, Compantive information has not bean sffected snd therefore no restatement is required.. The Company hasunderiaken
a review of its contmcts with customeers and concluded thal there tsno impadt on the wary in which it recognises its revenucs asno
clemnend of e revenue relles on estimates or B subgeet 10 reversal of significant restaicment.

Commisgons and mvestment managonant and advisory fees and sssocialed charges are rocogrised when the sorvioes concomed
are rendered. Irvesiment management and advisory fets are caleulated 45 aparcentage of asses under managemeanl. Commissons
are recognisod on @ rade dale basis, caboulated on o percentage of the sike. Porfformumoc focs are recognised i the paried in which
Ehey beconte dad and collecsble.

Operatlng expenses
Operaling expanses are sccounted for when they become payable

Dividends
Edquity dividends to the sharcholbder of the Group are recognised as u liability & the period during which they are declared and
appraved,

Foreign carremcies
The finctional and presontalional currency of the Growp and Comgasy i US dollars (5).

Trans&ctions in cusrencies othear than US doltars are reconded o1 the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the imnssations
Al cech balance sheet dafe, mmdary assds md lisbililies that are demomineted in forcign onmoncics sre retrmmsbabed af the mies
provailing on ke balmee sheel date. Mon-monetary assets and lisbilities carried a8 fuir value thal sre denominated m Foroign
currencics arc transiabed sl the rales prevailing at the dabe when Fair valae was delermined. Cains and losses ansing on reiranslation
are included in met profi or Joss for the perdod, eccept for exchange differences arising on non-monetary ssscts and liabilities where
the chamges in fuir vahae are recogoised dircctly inogaily.

Finamncisl indrumenls

IFRS 9. Financial Instruments replaced the classification and measurement contaimed in 1AS 3% Financial Instrumests: Recommition
anwd Measurement (1A% 39), In accordance with IFRS 9, the Company’s financial assets have been reclassified af amodised cost,
Taie value through cther comprehensive ineome of Far value tirough prolit or ks, The Company bas applicd IFRS # retrespectively,
with the Etention of including sy required adjustment 1o retained camings 25 3 | Apnl 2005 Comparstive mformation bas nol
been resated,

Thie vast majority of the Comgasy’s financial mstruments are cash and receivables which are messured af mmonised cost.

Followiag the Company's adoplion of IFRS 900 1 Apeil 200% ihe Company his evaluaied potential crodi Joses on 3l fnanaal
nsets Lhat are meenamred 8 mmortized cost. Faclors considered im determinmg whether o defanl is likely or posdble inclode whether
a pryment s overdue (and the lmgth of that ponod), sny known deterioration in the oredst quality’ of o clientGounterpaty or other
ismmes that coull sdversely affect 8 client’s'counterparty’s credit quality,

For financial assets where there i no known isaves affedting crodit quality, expooted onedil lesses are acalculated based on the bosass
that are expected tobe inourmed over o rollmg twelve-moeith peri od. Given the natuse of the Company's fimncial assets {i.e. mostly
cash l bank), there is & very bow credit ridc. The Company is also considering the use of money markel funds o increase
diversificatsom and further reduce credit risk

For any financial asscts where the contractual paymsent is moce than 30 days past doe. the defaull posilion is 1o axaeme an increise
in eredil sk However, defaalt levels in the padt have besn immatenial snd there were po foe receivaliles past die asat 31 Mafch
H2.

Invesimends in subsidiaries
Invedments im subsddiaries are stabed i tee parenl company®s bakande sheet ul cosd less any provigions for impammmil

Note 3 - Investment in Subsidiary
COMPANY

Ar 31 March 2000 and 31 March 201% ithe Company had an Evesiment of 31, In the opinion of the directors, the Companys
investment is not impaired, Details of the investment are as follows.

Sumbser, class and

Country of perceniaze of dhares
Invesler Incorpor ation Frincipal sctivity held b the Company
Cayinan 1 O share
PR AR oy | LI Islunds Ky e o 51, 100%

Note 4 — Taxation

Al 31 March 2020 and 3019, the tax rate applicalde to the Gromip and the Company's profils i (# becanse thore i no s levied
an Cayman kshinds companies.
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Mote 5 - Financial Risk Factors

The Group and Company’s financial instramsents comprise cash mvd cash equivalents and receivable and payable balances thal
artse from i1s daily operalions. All cash and cash equivalnts are carmied al ool which i considened o approvinmte to Fair vahse
b 1o the shor term maturity of these financial mamments, The main risks associated with the Group snd Company’s financial
asscte and Habilities s st out below;

Credie risk

Credit nisk = defned as the nsk of ol b due o o counterparty’s faihire o honour its obligation principally in rolation 1o
tramsctions where the Growp of Company provides goods o services on deferred terms and where it invesds or doposils amplus
cash, The Groap or Comgany do nol believe that they are materially exposed to credit nisk ns its smbes debfors are managed group
fimds amd therefore managomant end performance fecs receivable are govemod by its agreements with these fimds. To mitigate
anmy resadual risk of these aweta failing to be deliverad. the Greap and Company ensure that the terms of these spreements in
relation to payments of | & % mnd per ¢ Fres are adbvered o by moniloring its 3ged debtor analysis against the sgreed
servioe bevel agreamants.

The Group and Company sdopls the policy of dealmg with cadtomens of sppropmate credit history. For olber fimancial asets, the
Croanp vl Comgpany adapts the policy of dealimg with finaneial inituisons snd olber counterpantics with high credit ratings. There
are no financial assets pasl dus amd £ or enpaired 258 31 March 2020 a0 2019, Tradk recervables are due o leasl quarterly, sad are
mormally seitled within 30 days of their due dale. There ane no overdue trade reoonvables ot the balmot shod date.

Further, with regand o band: doposits, the Group mnd Compay only depessits moncy with approved comterpartses on agroed fams

Mar ki risk

Mwrket risk {or systemic risk) is defined as that risk which & common to an entire class of assels or liabslitics whereby their walse
an Miduale simply bocuse of ooonomic changes of othar ovents thal smpad large potions of the mwkd. The Group and
Company do pot believe that they are exposed o material market risk as the assets the Group and Company mamage are held by
ared o the benefit of fumd hodders through sepamle lezal entitics.

Currency risk

Cusrency risk iz definod as the nisk that the vabae of Group or Company assets md labilities denomisnated in currencies other than
the functional aerency of the Group or Company will change in value dae 1o movements in foreign exchange rates. The Group
and Company are exposed 1o cumency risk misng from vanions currency exposures, primarily with resped to the Japaness Yen
IV, Sterling Pound (SBP) and Singapore Dollar {3000, The Oreup and Company™s fee income i3 received mainly in USD and
JEY, A 31 March 2020 and 2009, had these comenci¢s strengthenedweakened by 10% againg the USD with all other vanshles
mchuding tax mate being held constant, the Group and Company's prafil befiore tux for the fnancisl yoar would have boen
Bigheeribower ms @ sl of currency transkalion losscsipains on the ranainmg cusrency denomisated cash balances, trade receivables
e pqyiilﬁ; bwy the below amounts.

Currency 2020 2009
(Rounded 1o nearest § thousandy
Y 5 3,000 3 54,000
GEP T, (e 05 M
20D 15,000 R1ALLT
EUR 2,060 .

Liquidtity risk amd Mnancial solvency risk

Liquadity risk is defined as the risk thet the Group or Compmy will not be sble to meeel its financial obligatins as they fll due
The Group and Company’s appresch 1o managing this risk B b enaare thal il has saffcent Hguidity to nseet i3 Habilndes when
e, both umder nonmisl amd sressed conditions

Capital managemeni
The Group and Comijeey capital position i% momilored on an ongomg bass 1o owsre that i is adequate. Thioe are no extomally

impidd capital requiremicnts.

Falr Yalue of Financlal Ingrumenis
The fair values of fimncial assels and fiancial Babilitics that are eded in active markets are based on qeoled market prices o
deaber price quodations. For all other financial insfruments, the Group ddamine fir valies usng other valistion tedmigaes.

For financial instnaments that trade mifrequently and have little price transparency. fair value is less obgective, and requires varying
degrees of judgement depending oo liquidity. conceniratim, uncetainty of markel factors, pricing assumglions and ofher nisks
affecting the specific instrument.

The tehle below apalyees finmncal msnaments. into a fair value hiemrchy based on the vabaation techmique used 1o debermeine fair
value

& Level 1 quoled prices funadp sted) in netive markels for sdendicnl niets or liabilities

® Level 20 inguits other than quoted prices included withim Level 1 ths are observable for the sssel o lisbility, either direcly
(i.e.. a5 prices) or indirectly {i.e., derived from prices)

®  Level 3t dmpuls for the mesel of liability that are nol based on observable mket data (unobservable mgauls),
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Year ended 3 March 2428 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal 2620
Ameli 5 3 5 5

Cash wed cash exquivalent LH18385 54628385
Accomls receivable TR51.607 2R51.607
Acerued meome and propaid expense 0125 oS
Lintsdlithes

Acerued expense and defomed imcome 148 X0 148 1)
Acdoumls payable TR0 TREM
Accoimls payabile 1o groap

- I . 16435407 L 1683 54T
Yoear ended 3 March 2009 Leved | Lawe] 3 Larvel 3 Tatal 3015
Asets H H 5 H

Cash wxd cash equivalms 1938508 - 1958938
Acooumnls receivable 090,108 - 3090108
Acernad meome and prepaid expense 71250 71250
Llubsilfibes

Acerued expense and deferred income 146480 146,480
Accoumlis payable 124271 124271
Accounts payable o groap

dndentikings 1AEL39] - 1462391

Al finamcial assds and lmbslitics we camod al histoncl cost. The fasr valuces of all finmncial msds and labglilios are smlar o
their carryimg vahpes owing to their short kema nasture.

Note 6 - Helated Party Transactions
Transections between the Group and Company snd relsted pariees are dischsed below:

Debilor as Credilor asal
Operating Operating at 31 March 31 March
Yoenr emded 31 March 2020 Hevenues Expemses (n) P (] 202 ihy
Nikko Aseet Mmagomml Amencas, Inc. 5 = 3 4 939 085 5 = 5 686,458
Hikko Assct Management Europe Lid. - 1,165335 - #1551
NWikko Assel Mmnagemant Co, Lid. - 6464 511 179,247 .
Nikko Assel Mamagement Asia Lid, - 1 500,198 - 157384
Hikko Aszel Mmagemanl Hong Kong - 115458 - 7000
Talsl 3 & 1601038 5 179,247 5 181
Drelslor as Credlilor as an
Operating Opirating al 31 March A1 March
Year ended 31 March 2019 Hevenies Expeises (a) 2019 (b} 2019}
Hikko Assel Mmnagemanl Americas, [nc. i = 3 4, 735,000 5 = -1 A5DTTS
Wikl Asset Management Europe Lid, - SATRSM - 1253, 147
Nikko Asct Mmnagemant Co, Led. - A3 30 = 07 671
Mikko Asset Management Asia Lid - TOTLE4R - S40.063
Nikko Asscl Managemant Hong Keng . 136,852 . 12.733
Talzl 3 3 I OEG55T 3 5 AT
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{a) Operaling experses paid (o relsted parties we payable under mvestment management agreements and are for fland
management servaces,

(b} The amounts cutdmding are unsecured and will be setibed in cash, No gusrmtees have been given or received. No provisions
laavie boan made for doubtful delbis in respect of the amounts owed by related parties.

Nikko Assct Mmnzgomonl Amaricas, Ing., Mikke Asscl Management Ewrope Lid., Nikko Asect Managemond Asia Led md RNikke
Asud Management Hong Bong arc [ellow subssdiarics. Mikko Assa Managanant Co, Lid bx an imdiceet sharchalder of the
aforementioned subsdiaries,

Note T - Ultineie Holding Company

Thie Greap is & wholly owned sobsidiary of Nikko AM Global Holdings Lid, (s smmediste parent mndeniaking, a company which
is registered im England end Wales.

In the opinion of the direcbors the altimate parent company. and controllimg pany. ts Sumdteme Mian Test Holdings, Inc. a
company incorporsted in Jepn, Financial satensents for Sumitoma Mitsai Trust Holdings. Inc, are svailable 1o the public from

the Investor Relatsons Office, Financial Plasming Depariment, Samitoma Mitsai Trust Huldq:. Ime. L=dal, M:.l‘uurul.th Chiyoda-
ko, Tokoyo 100-8233, Japan. Copies of the anmeal repoet can be viewed or retrieved firom

Note § — Subsequent Events

Subsecuant 16 the sdstoment of finmaal postion dat e, there were no cvents which had m impsa on the consolidated and mdividual
Tknancisl sabensents of the Company.

155/207



30

UFJ

76

156/207

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021
110.58



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 30
2020 30 2020 31
6,905,864 763,650 5,628,385 622,387
2,811,372 310,882 2,851,607 315,331
23,377 2,585 70,125 7,754
9,740,613 1,077,117 8,550,117 945,472
9,740,613 1,077,117 8,550,117 945,472
120,087 13,279 148,200 16,388
82,785 9,154 79,840 8,829
1,913,594 211,605 1,643,547 181,743
2,116,466 234,039 1,871,587 206,960
480,000 2020 30

2020 31
480,000 480,000 53,078 480,000 53,078
7,144,148 790,000 6,198,530 685,433
7,624,148 843,078 6,678,530 738,512
9,740,614 1,077,117 8,550,117 945,472

110.58
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2020 30
2020 30 2020 31
6,905,864 763,650 5,628,385 622,387
2,811,372 310,882 2,851,607 315,331
23,377 2,585 70,125 7,754
9,740,613 1,077,117 8,550,117 945,472
1 0.111 1 0.111
1 0.111 1 0.111
9,740,614 1,077,117 8,550,118 945,472
120,087 13,279 148,200 16,388
82,785 9,154 79,840 8,829
1,913,594 211,605 1,643,547 181,743
2,116,466 234,039 1,871,587 206,960
480,000 2020 30
2020 31
480,000 480,000 53,078 480,000 53,078
7,144,148 790,000 6,198,531 685,434
7,624,148 843,078 6,678,531 738,512
9,740,614 1,077,117 8,550,118 945,472
110.58
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2020 30
2020 30 2020 31
8,325,309 920,613 19,213,975 2,124,681
8,325,309 920,613 19,213,975 2,124,681
(488,340) (54,001) (1,183,017) (130, 818)
(6,365,716) (703,921) (15,585,538)  (1,723,449)
(9,058) (1,002) (15,764) (1,743)
(116,613) (12,895) (228,510) (25,269)
(6,979,727) (771,818) (17,012,829)  (1,881,279)
1,345,582 148,794 2,201,146 243,403
24,635 2,724 10,240 1,132
24,635 2,724 10,240 1,132
1,370,217 151,519 2,211,386 244,535
1,370,217 151,519 2,211,386 244,535
1,370,217 151,519 2,211,386 244,535

110.58
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2020 30

( ) C ) ( ) « ) ( ) « )
2019 31 480,000 53,078 3,987,145 440,898 4,467,145 493,977
2,211,386 244,535 2,211,386 244,535
2020 31 480,000 53,078 6,198,531 685,434 6,678,531 738,512
(424,600)  (46,952)  (424,600)  (46,952)
1,370,217 151,519 1,370,217 151,519
2020 30 480,000 53,078 7,144,148 790,000 7,624,148 843,078

110.58
2020 30
2020 30 2020 31

1,345,583 148,795 2,201,147 243,403

24,635 2,724 10,240 1,132

86,982 9,618 339,626 37,556

244,878 27,079 (861,555) (95,271)

1,702,078 188,216 1,689,458 186,820

(424,600) (46,952)
(424,600) (46,952)

1,277,478 141,264 1,689,458 186,820

5,628,386 622,387 3,938,928 435,567

6,905,864 763,650 5,628,386 622,387

110.58
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2020 30
309GT
EU
IFRS IFRS IFRIC
2020 31 IFRS
1ASB IFRIC EU
IFRS 1ASB
IFRIC
1ASB IFRS
2020 30 2020 31
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IFRS 15

IFRS 15

2018

IAS 18
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IFRS 9 1AS 39 1AS 39
IFRS 9 ) ) )
2018 IFRS 9
2018 IFRS 9
12
30
2020 30
2020 30 2020 31
100
2020 30 2020 31
2020 30 2020 31
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30
JPY GBP SGD
2020 30
2020 31 10
2020 30 2020 31
JPY 38,000 36,000
GBP 76,000 76,000
SGD 45,000 15,000
EUR 4,000 2,000
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2020 30 2020 30
2020 30 a
® ® ®
C O C O C O C O

702,454 140,109

4,112,350 1,099,130

643,733 231,193

796,864 434,732

110,316 8,430

6,365,717 1,913,594

2020 31 2020 31
2020 31 a
® ® ®
C O C O C O C O

2,660,526 261,856

8,822,358 991,951

2,185,998 245,353

1,801,198 137,386

115,458 7,001

15,585,538 1,643,547

(a
®
100-8233
IR

http://www_smth_jp/en/
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@
FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
2021 36,936,427 40 8,443
1965
@
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
2020 12 1,040,000,000 1,150 320
(©))
UFJ
2021 405
-2
SMBC
2021 875
(O]
2021 173 63
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®

DoubleLine Capital LP)

1940

@

90
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@

)

®

CIMA

)
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Q)
UFJ SMBC
()
®
UFJ
JSDA
JSDA
)
©
SEC
()
Q)
1940
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@

@
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100

®)

171/207



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1.1 1993

1.2
1960

1.3
(a
1993
2020

(b
2020

1.4

1.5 2019 12 10,857
2,886
2020
2020
1.6
2.1

CIMA

CIMA
2.2

2.3

O

(a
(b
(c
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2.4 CIMA CIMA

CIMA
2.5 2020
15

CIMA
2.6

3.1

CIMA CIMA CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

3.2

CIMA

CIMA

3.3

(a 80,000 CIMA 100,000

(b

CIMA
3.4

2020 CIMA
CIMA

15

80,000 100,000
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4.1
CIMA
CIMA
4.2 CIMA
(a
(b
(c
«
(e
4.3
21
4.4 2006 12 27
CIMA
5.1
5.2
5.3
CIMA
5.4 CIMA
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CIMA
21
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
48
3.2
10



5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

CIMA

(a
(b

(c
(d
(e

@i

(A
B 12

(c
CIMA

CIMA

6.1

(a

O

(c

«

CIMA

(A

17

36,585
8,536
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CIMA

CIMA

c

CIMA

24,390 30,488
8,536
42,682



6.2

6.3

(f
@

(h
@

(k

(m

(n

(vii

30

(a

®

(c

«

(f

(9

(h
@i

1925

150

20

(a

O

CIMA
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6.4

(c

(

(e

(f

(9

(h

@i

(k

(a

O

(c

@i

(vi

2016

50

1771207
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«

(e 50

CIMA
7.1 CIMA CIMA CIMA

7.2
7.1

500
7.3
CIMA CIMA CIMA
CIMA

7.4 7.3 10

7.5 7.3
CIMA
10
7.6
CIMA CIMA

7.7 CIMA 7.9

(a
(b

(c
«

(e
(f

7.8 7.7 CIMA CIMA

(a CIVA
® CIMA
(c
(d CIVA CIMA
7.9 7.7 CIMA
@a b)
a)

(b

(c
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@
(e
.10 CIMA 7.9 CIMA

.11 CIMA CIMA

A2 7.9(d) 7.9(e)

CIMA CIMA
.13 7.9(e)

7.14  7.13
7.15  7.9(d) 7.9(e)

(a CINA CINA CINA
(b CINMA
CINA
c () CINMA CINA

16 7.9(d) 7.9(e) 7.15 CINA
CIMA

17 7.15 CIMA
(a CIVA
(b 94(4)
(c
«
(e 7.9(d) 7.9(e)
.18 CIMA 7.17
7.9
.19 CIMA  7.9(a)

.20 7.17(c)

.21 CIMA CIMA

b)
a)

CIMA
.1 CIMA CIMA CIMA

500

CIMA CIMA CIMA
CIMA
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8.5 8.3

CIMA
10
8.6 CIMA CIMA

(a
(b
8.7 CIMA

8.8 CIMA 8.10
(a
(b

(c

(

(e

(f
@

(h

8.9 8.8 CIMA CIMA

(a
€ CIMA

(i CIMA
(iii
(iv CIMA
(Y CIMA
(vi CIMA
(vii
(viii  CIMA CIMA
(b CIMA
(c CIMA
(d CINA
8.10 8.8 CIMA
(a
(b
(c
(¢
(e
8.11 CIMA 8.10 CIMA CIMA

8.12  8.10(d) 8.10(e)
CINA CINA
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8.13  8.10(e)

8.14 8.13

8.15  8.10(d) 8.10(e)

(a CINA CINA CINA
(b CIMA CINA

c O CIMA CIMA
8.16  8.10(d) 8.10(e)

(a 8.15

(b CINA

CIMA

8.17 8.15 CIMA

(a CINA

(b 94(4)

(c CIMA 8.10(d) 8.10(e)

8.18 CIMA 8.16 CIMA

8.19 CIMA CIMA

(a CINA

O
8.20 CINA  8.10

8.21 CIMA

9.1 CIMA
(a
(b

«
CIMA
9.2 9.1(a) 9.1(d)
CIMA
9.3 CIMA
(a 9.1(a) 9.1(d)
(b
(c
9.4 CIMA

CIMA CIMA
CIMA
(a
181/207



9.5

9.6

(b
(c
@

(e

10 CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

20

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

10.1

11

(a

(b

(c

(a

(b

(c

@

(e

(f

(9

(h
@i

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

11.1

11.2
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11.3
(a 14(1)

14(2)

(b

11.4
(a

@i
(i
¢

(c

(

(e

11.5

(a
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Report of Independent Auditors

To FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as the Trustee of
DoubleLine Total Return Fund

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of DoubleLine Total Return Fund (the “ Fund” ), which
comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the portfolio of investments, as of February 28,
2021, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and of cash flows and the financial
highlights for the year then ended. These financial statements and financial highlights are hereafter

collectively referred to as "financial statements".

Management’ s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Fund’ s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’ s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of DoubleLine Total Return Fund as of February 28, 2021, and the results of its operations,
changes in its net assets, and its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended, in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

July 6, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT TO THE DIRECTORS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory accounts of Nikko AM Global Cayman Ltd (* the company” ) for the year ended 31
March 2020 which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2020, the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and related
notes including the accounting policies in note 2. The non-statutory accounts have been prepared for the reasons
set out in note 1.

In our opinion the non-statutory accounts:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’ s affairs as at 31 March 2020 and of its profit for
the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ ISAs (UK)” ) and the terms
of our engagement letter dated 02 April 2020.  Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and
appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory accounts on the going concern basis as they do not intend to
liquidate the company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the company’ s financial
position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that
could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the
date of approval of the non-statutory accounts (“ the going concern period” ).

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of
that basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory accounts. In our
evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the company’ s business model,
including the impact of Brexit, and analysed how those risks might affect the company’ s financial resources or
ability to continue operations over the going concern period. We have nothing to report in these respects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of reference
to a material uncertainty in this auditor®s report is not a guarantee that the company will continue in
operation.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the director’ s report. Our opinion on
the non-statutory accounts does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory accounts or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified material

misstatements in the other information.

198/207



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Directors”™ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory accounts, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory accounts that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the company’ s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory accounts as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’ s report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory accounts.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC' s website at
ww . Frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been
released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company’ s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company’ s needs at the
time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability
in respect of our report to any other party.

Michael McGarry (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

06 August 2020
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Report of Independent Auditors

To CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as the Trustee of Doubleline Total Return
Fund

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Doubleline Total Return Fund (the “ Fund” ), which
comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the portfolio of investments, as of February 29,
2020, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and of cash flows and the financial
highlights for the year then ended. These financial statements and financial highlights are hereafter

collectively referred to as "financial statements".

Management’ s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Fund’ s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’ s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Doubleline Total Return Fund as of February 29, 2020, and the results of its operations,
changes in its net assets, and its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended, in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

June 26, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT TO THE DIRECTORS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory accounts of Nikko AM Global Cayman Ltd (the “ Company” ) for the year ended 31
March 2019 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and the Company Statement of Financial
Position as at 31 March 2019, the Statement of Consolidated Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and related notes including
the accounting policies in note 2. The non-statutory accounts have been prepared for the reasons set out in note
1.

In our opinion the non-statutory accounts:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’ s affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of its profit for
the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ ISAs (UK)” ) and the terms
of our engagement letter dated 3 May 2019. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and
appropriate basis for our opinion.

The impact of uncertainties due to the UK exiting the European Union on our audit

Uncertainties related to the effects of Brexit are relevant to understanding our audit of the financial
statements. All audits assess and challenge the reasonableness of estimates made by the directors and related
disclosures and the appropriateness of the going concern basis of preparation of the financial statements. All of
these depend on assessments of the future economic environment and the company®s future prospects and
performance.

Brexit is one of the most significant economic events for the UK, and at the date of this report its effects are
subject to unprecedented levels of uncertainty of outcomes, with the full range of possible effects unknown. We
applied a standardised firm-wide approach in response to that uncertainty when assessing the company"s future
prospects and performance. However, no audit should be expected to predict the unknowable factors or all possible
future implications for a company and this is particularly the case in relation to Brexit.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory accounts on the going concern basis as they do not intend to
liquidate the group or to cease their operations, and as they have concluded that the group and the company®s
financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material
uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over their ability to continue as a going concern for at
least a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory accounts (“ the going concern period” ).

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of
that basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory accounts. In our
evaluation of the directors® conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the group®s business model,
including the impact of Brexit, and analysed how those risks might affect the group and company®s financial
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resources or ability to continue operations over the going concern period. We have nothing to report in these

respects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of reference
to a material uncertainty in this auditor®s report is not a guarantee that the group will continue in operation.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the director®s report. Our opinion on
the non-statutory accounts does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory accounts or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified material
misstatements in the other information.

Directors” responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory accounts, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory accounts that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the company’ s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory accounts as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’ s report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory accounts.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC' s website at
ww . Frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been
released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company’ s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company’ s needs at the
time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability
in respect of our report to any other party.
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Michael McGarry (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

2 August 2019
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